Region V Systems

Promoting Comprehensive Partnerships in Behavioral Health

Behavioral Health Advisory Committee
November 1, 2023
10:00 am. - 12:00 p.m. - Hybrid
1645 N Street, Lincoln, Nebraska
Phone: 402-441-4343
Webpage: www.region5systems.net

|https://us02web.zoom.us/i/89528214880?pwd=anEb3IwdeWOGZJdeYTWd3NHA3QT09|
ALL BHAC MEETINGS ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AND ARE AUDIOTAPED

AGENDA ITEM ACTION NEEDED PAGE
1. Housekeeping . Discussion NIA
2.  Open Meeting Act Information . Discussion NIA
3. Roll Gall . Call the Roll NIA
4. Additions to Agenda (Non-Motion Items) y . Discussion NIA
5. Public Comment . Discussion NIA
6. Network Provider Presentation-Brenda Mueller, Exec. Director, Houses of Hope ......... . Discussion NIA
7. Consent Agenda . Motion 19

*  Minutes - August 30, 2023

*  FY 23-24 Compliance Management Report

*  Regional Governing Board Report

8 Action / Priority Item

A, FY 23-24 Contractiial AGIEEMENLS........ccceecveieriirrieieieiesiesreseseestessessesseseessessessessessesssenes Motion(s) 10-13
*  Evidence Based Practice
*  Network Provider
*  Prevention
*  Statewide Opioid Response: (SOR)

*  Other
B.  Youth and Family Crisis Response Center - Square One Recipient Award......................... Motion NIA
C. Region VFY 22-23 Annual Report (Draft)........cccccevevieieiienieniecicieieiesee e Motion Attached
9. Other Updates / Information
A. Behavioral Health/ Legislative Updates...........cccecverierierienieriinienieiesiesiesiesieeesesie e Discussion NIA
B.  Voluntary Crisis ReSponSe CENLET..........c.ccveriiriieieieieniieeeieiesieeeeeeesessessesseesesessesseessenses Discussion NIA
C. Behavioral Health Workforce Stablhzatlon Funds Update..........ccoeeveeverieneniinenieieieienne Discussion NIA
D, Medicaid UnWiInd.........ccceueueirinninineiere ettt Discussion NIA
E. Opioid Settlement FUNAS UPAate ... “.ovueoeeee eveeriiiees e e coeivineeccieae o venreseaens ceveees senes cens Discussion NIA
F.  Emergency System UPdate..........ccceecierieriiriirieieieiesesteeete e eeeeeaese e e s sesse e ssaesnenses Discussion NIA
G. Prevention System UpPdate..........ccocivieieririeieiiiiieieteseeeete ettt Discussion NIA
H. Network Continuous Quality hnprovement
* FY 22-23 Zero SuiCide REPOTL........ccveviiiiieieierieeieieiese ettt Discussion 14-15
* FY 22-23 Complaints, Appeals, Critical Incident Report ............................................... Discussion 16-23
* FY 2223 B Quality File Review Report..........ccoceeees eeiieieineieieeeeeeeee e Discussion 24-26
* FY 22-23 Ineligibles and Denials Report (& Multi-year reView)..........cecvevvecverrervervenens Discussion 27-31
*  FY 22-23 National Outcome MEASUIES.........c.ceuerrerererrerienieiinieieieereseeeesesieseeseeseseeneenenes Discussion 3235
* FY 22-23 Perception OF Care ... ......oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiice e Discussion 36-39
®  FY 22-23 ReCOVETY OULCOMES. ......ccveerieereerenieienireeiestesessessesseeseessessessesssessessensessensesseenes Discussion 4041
* FY 22-23 Stable Living & Employment at Discharge.............cccceevvirinienenineneneens Discussion 42-47
L Wellbeing Initiative Quarterly Report Q L.........cceeeviriieiiieieeeieieceieeeeeeee e Information Only 4849
J. FY 23-24 Capacity Utilization SUMMATIES ..........cccerrerreeirieieeeierereeesesessessessessessessensenns Information Only ~ 50-68
K. FY 23-24 Training Blane . . oo o s st o s 1 o T s o0 L T st sos s Information Only  69-71
10. Kim Freese, Regional Director, SAMHSA, Region VII (11:00 a.m. -12:00 p.m.) .....cccceceue Via Zoom Presentation

11. Other Business
12. Important Dates
*  November 9- 9:00 am. - Regional Prevention Coalition
*  November 3 - 10:15 am. - RGB Meeting at Apace (formerly Region V Services), 3600 Union Drive, Lincoln, NE
*  November 20 - Network Provider Meeting / Teams
* January 31 - 10:00 am. - BHAC Meeting, Region V Systems, 1645 N Street, Lincoln, NE - Hybrid


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89528214880?pwd=dnFEb3IwNzdWOGZJbVdYTWd3NHA3QT09

ACT
AMSR
ASO
BH
BHAC
BHECN
CACI
CAG
CARF

CCBHC
CBC
CCT
CDS
CFS
CHE
CLAS

CMS
CoD
CQl
CRT
DBH
DBT
DHHS
EBP
EHR
EMDR

EMR
EPC
ERCS
FFS
FIF
FTE
FYI
HIPAA

HOPE

LINCS

MCO

MHFA
MHSIP

MI
NABHO

NACO
NAMI
NFFS
NMT

General Terms

Assertive Community Treatment / PIER
Assessing and Managing Suicide Risk
Administrative Service Organization
Behavioral Health

Behavioral Health Advisory Committee

Behavioral Health Education Center of Nebraska

Complaints, Appeals and Critical Incidents

Capacity Access Guarantee

Commission on Accreditation of
Rehabilitation Facilities

Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic

Community Benefits Center

Corporate Compliance Team

Centralized Data System

Children and Family Services

Community Health Endowment

Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Services

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services

Co-occurring Disorder

Continuous Quality Improvement

Crisis Response Team

Division of Behavioral Health

Dialectical Behavior Therapy

Department of Health & Human Services

Evidence Based Practices

Electronic Health Record

Eye Movement Desensitization and
Reprocessing

Electronic Medical Record

Emergency Protective Custody

Emergency Community Support

Fee for Service

Families Inspiring Families

Full-Time Equivalent (Staff)

Family & Youth Investment

Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996

Higher Opportunities Through the Power
of Employment

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid
Re-housing Program

Housing and Urban Development

Institutions for Mental Disease

Intent to Negotiate

Joint Budget Commission

Linking Individuals/Families in Need of
Community Supports

Managed Care Organization

Mental Health

Mental Health Board

Mental Health First Aid

Mental Health Statistics Improvement
Program

Motivational Interviewing

National Association of Behavioral Health
Organizations

Nebraska Association of County Officials

National Alliance on Mental Illness

Non-Fee for Service / Expense Reimbursement

Network Management Team

NOMS
NP
NPP
0CO
OTO
PATH

PIP
PPP

PRR
QPR

RAP
REAL
RFA

RFP

RFQ
RGB
RPC
RPH
RPSC
RQIT
SAMHSA

SAVE
SCIP
SED
SMI
SOC
SPF
SPMI
SUD
TAD
TAPP
TAY
TIC
WRAP

ACT
BVBH
BBH
Cntpt
GwW
HOH
IBHS
HS
IBHS
LFS
LRC

MHCC

PIER
ST.M'S
TASC
TC

ABBREVIATIONS

General Terms (continued)

National Outcome Measures

Network Provider

Nebraska Partnership Project

Office of Consumer Affairs

One-time-only

Projects for Assistance of Transition from
Homelessness

Performance Improvement Plan

Prevention Professional Partner

Psychiatric Residential Rehabilitation

Question, Persuade, Refer

Regional Administrator

Rental Assistance Program

Respond, Empower, Advocate, Listen

Request for Approval

Request for Proposals

Request for Qualifications

Regional Governing Board

Regional Prevention Center

Rural Permanent Housing

Regional Prevention System Coordination

Regional Quality Improvement Team

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration

Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements

School Community Intervention Program

Serious Emotional Disturbance

Serious Mental Illness

System of Care

Strategic Prevention Framework

Serious and Persistent Mental Illness

Substance Abuse Disorder

Turmaround Document

Transition Age Professional Partner

Transition Age Youth

Trauma Informed Care

Wellness Recovery Action Plan

Funded Agencies

Associates in Counselling and Treatment
Blue Valley Behavioral Health

Bridge Behavioral Health

CenterPointe

Goodwill Industries

Houses of Hope

Integrated Behavioral Health Services
HopeSpoke

Integrated Behavioral Health Services
Lutheran Family Services

Lincoln Regional Center

Mental Health Association

Mental Health Crisis Center

Mary Lanning Hospital

Partners in Empowerment and Recovery (ACT)
St. Monica's

Targeted Adult Service Coordination
Telecare Recovery Center



BEHAVIORAL HEALTH ADVISORY COMMITTEE

MINUTES
August 30, 2023
10:00 a.m.
Region V Systems, 1645 N Street

MEMBERS Greg Janak, Corrie Kielty, Stephanie Knight, Jill Kuzelka, Sarah McEntarffer, Rebecca
PRESENT: Meinders, Rachel Mulcahy, Laura Osborne, Gale Pohlmann, Kim Schroeder, Kelsey Schwab,
Michele Vana, Evette Watts

MEMBERS Renee Duffek

ABSENT:
OTHERS Natalya Young, St. Monica’s; Tami DeShon, Trina Janis, Patrick Kreifels, Kim Michael,
PRESENT: Sandy Morrissey, Erin Rourke, Marti Rabe, Region V Systems

HOUSEKEEPING / ANNOUNCEMENTS / INTRODUCTIONS
Kuzelka called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. followed by announcements and rollcall. A quorum was present.

OPEN MEETING ACT INFORMATION _

Kuzelka noted that Open Meeting Act information is posted at Region V Systems as required by the Open Meetings
Act. Notification of this meeting and information regarding availability of the agenda was provided through a legal
notice in the Lincoln Journal Star, published August 16, 2023.

ADDITIONS / CHANGES TO AGENDA
There were no changes to the agenda.

PUBLIC COMMENT
There was no Public Comment.

NETWORK PROVIDER PRESENTATION — ST. MONICA’S

e Natalya Young — St. Monica’s: Young distributed a brochure and a document listing the programs / services
that St. Monica’s provides and briefly described those programs. St. Monica’s is most widely known for its
residential programs and will be opening a gender-specific halfway house very soon, a service for women which
was previously unavailable.

e Young described her history with behavioral health and stated that she has been in her current role as Director
since July 2022.

e Young briefly described the role that the Behavioral Health Regions play in encouraging collaboration and
helping to remove barriers.

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

Osborne made a motion, seconded by Knight, to approve the consent agenda. (Minutes — May 31, 2023, FY 22-23
Year-end Compliance Management Report, RGB Report). There was no further discussion. Voting aye were: Janak,
Kielty, Knight, Kuzelka, McEntarffer, Meinders, Mulcahy, Osborne, Pohlmann, Schwab, Schroeder, Vana and
Watts; nays none, absent: Duffek. Motion carried.

ACTION / PRIORITY ITEMS
FY 22-23 Year-end Provider Contractual Amendments: DeShon presented information related to the final year-

end shifts for provider contracts stating that the Region was able to cover all fee-for-service and non-fee-for-service
units that were overproduced. Kielty made a motion, seconded by Pohlmann, to recommend the Board approve the
FY 22-23 Year-end Provider Contractual Amendments. Voting aye were: Janak, Kielty, Knight, Kuzelka,
McEntarffer, Meinders, Mulcahy, Osborne, Pohlmann, Schwab, Schroeder, Vana and Watts; nays none, absent:
Duffek. Motion carried.




August 30, 2023 .-
Behavioral Health Advisory Committee Minutes -2-
Page 2 of 5

FY 23-24 Contractual Agreements: Kreifels presented contracts in the following categories:

e Mental Health First Aid (MHFA): This contract, in the amount of $400 per 8-hour training will provide for
adult or youth MHFA training in the community. Mulcahy made a motion, seconded by J anak, to recommend
the Board approve this contract for the provision of adult or youth MHFA. Voting aye were: Janak, Kielty,
Knight, Kuzelka, McEntarffer, Meinders, Mulcahy, Osborne, Pohlmann, Schwab, Schroeder, Vana and Watts;
nays none, absent: Duffek. Motion carried.

e Prevention:
> Lancaster County and Don’t Panic Labs: This contract, in the amount of $6,000 to Lancaster County will

provide funding for upgrading the MyLink website.

» Committee for Children: This contract for up to $50,000, will provide social-emotional learning skills for
youth through implementation of the Second Step curriculum in area schools.

» Osborne made a motion, seconded by Vana, to recommend the Board approve these contracts for the
provision of prevention services: Voting aye were: Janak, Kielty, Knight, Kuzelka, McEntarffer, Meinders,
Mulcahy, Osborne, Pohlmann, Schwab, Schroeder, Vana and Watts; nays none, absent: Duffek. Motion
carried.

e Miscellaneous:

» University of Nebraska — Lincoln: This contract, in the amount of $55,307 to UNL will provide funding for
scholarships for licensed clinicians to be trained in Parent-Child Interaction Therapy.

> Motivate 2 Communicate, LLC: This contract for $42,480.50 will provide training and consultation by
Brenda Jennings to implement Motivational Interviewing.

> University of Nebraska Public Policy Center: This contract for $125,000 will evaluate the implementation
of Motivational Interviewing and Dialectic Behavior Therapy.

» Mulcahy made a motion, seconded by Osborne, to recommend the Board approve these Miscellaneous
contracts as presented. Voting aye were: Janak, Kielty, Knight, Kuzelka, McEntarffer, Meinders, Mulcahy,
Osborne, Pohlmann, Schwab, Schroeder, Vana and Watts; nays none, absent: Duffek. Motion carried.

Voluntary Crisis Response Center Request for Proposals (RFP) Recommendation:

e Kreifels briefly reviewed the timeline for this project which will include erisis stabilization and mental health
respite for adults in the 16 counties of Region V. Lancaster County is contributing 2.4 million dollars in ARPA
funding for capital construction for this collaborative project. When Lancaster County did not approve the
agency recommended by the review committee - The Bridge Behavioral Health (BBH) - the Governing Board
moved to allow BBH time to determine whether they could move forward without the ARPA funding. BBH
declined to pursue seeking alternative funding.

e The Board motion also allowed the Region to pursue negotiations with the other agency, Integrated Behavioral
Health Services (IBHS). There was brief discussion regarding the strengths and challenges of this application
with insightful comments from members of the review committee. After receiving a revised budget and meeting
with IBHS staff, the review committee subsequently recommended moving forward with IBHS. Lancaster
County did approve using their ARPA funding for [BHS.

e Pohlmann made a motion, seconded by McEntarffer, to recommend the Board approve the Voluntary Crisis
Response Center RFP Recommendation as presented. Voting aye were: Janak, Kielty, Knight, Kuzelka,
McEntarffer, Meinders, Mulcahy, Osborne, Pohlmann, Schwab, Schroeder, Vana and Watts; nays none, absent:
Duffek. Motion carried.

FY 22-23 Site Visit Report Summaries: .

e Final site visit reports for FY 22-23 for The Bridge Behavioral Health (BBH), HopeSpoke, Houses of Hope /
TASC / Touchstone, Integrated Behavioral Health Services, Lutheran Family Services, Mental Health
Association of NE, Mental Health Crisis Center, and St. Monica’s were presented.

e Kreifels noted agency compliance with units audits, program fidelity audits where required, and compliance
with minimum standards, contractual requirements, and block grant requirements (Where needed). Corrective
action was noted where applicable.

e Knight made a motion, seconded by Vana, to recommend the Board approve the FY 22-23 Site Visit Report
Summaries as presented. Voting aye were: Janak, Kielty, Knight, Kuzelka, McEntarffer, Meinders, Mulcahy,
Osborne, Pohlmann, Schwab, Schroeder, Vana, and Watts; nays none, absent: Duffek; Motion carried.



August 30, 2023
Behavioral Health Advisory Committee Minutes
Page 3 of 5

FY 23-24 Risk Management Plan — Draft: The Risk Management Plan is a requirement for CARF accreditation
and identifies potential threats or losses to the Region as well as action steps to mitigate or avoid such losses.
Michael drew attention to new action items including changes that may be necessary after evaluation of the business
interruption plan related to affects from the pandemic. Janak made a motion, seconded by Watts, to recommend the
Board approve the FY 23-24 Risk Management Plan as presented. Voting aye were: Janak, Kielty, Knight, Kuzelka,
McEntarffer, Meinders, Mulcahy, Osborne, Pohlmann, Schwab, Schroeder, and Watts; nays none, absent: Duffek,
Vana; Motion carried.

FY 23-24 Performance Improvement Plan (PIP) — Draft:

e Kreifels explained that the PIP serves to identify program areas that the Region intends to monitor for quality
assurance. All Region V staff have provided input for the draft Plan. Rourke indicated that there were few
changes to the PIPs, though there are four new / additional areas to be monitored.

e Schroeder made a motion, seconded by Keilty, to recommend the Board approve the FY 23-24 Performance
Improvement Plan as presented. Voting aye were: Janak, Kielty, Knight, Kuzelka, McEntarffer, Meinders,
Mulcahy, Osborne, Pohlmann, Schwab, Schroeder, and Watts; nays none, absent: Duffek, Vana; Motion
carried.

DHHS Audit Monitoring: Kreifels reported that the DHHS audits of Network Audit Monitoring, Prevention Audit
Monitoring, and the Professional Partner Program were found to be in compliance with standards and / or unit
audits. Mulcahy made a motion, seconded by Knight, to recommend the Board audit monitoring reports as
presented. Voting aye were: Janak, Kielty, Knight, Kuzelka, McEntarffer, Meinders, Mulcahy, Osborne, Pohlmann,
Schwab, Schroeder, and Watts; nays none, absent: Duffek, Vana; Motion carried.

Meeting Time Extension: Kreifels asked the BHAC to consider extending the meeting end time from 11:30 a.m.to
12:00 p.m., noting that the extensive agendas require a significant amount of time to cover thoroughly. Hearing no
dissent, Watts made a motion, seconded by McEntarffer, to approve the extension of the meeting time from 11:30
a.m. to 12:00 p.m. Voting aye were: Janak, Kielty, Knight, Kuzelka, McEntarffer, Meinders, Mulcahy, Osborne,
Pohlmann, Schwab, Schroeder, and Watts; nays none, absent: Duffek, Vana; Motion catried.

OTHER UPDATES/INFORMATION:

Behavioral Health/Legislative Updates: Kreifels reported the following:

e Rourke was recently appointed to join the Corporate Compliance Team as of September 1.

e Governor Pillen has appointed Steve Corsi as the CEO for DHHS, subject to Legislative approval. It is
anticipated that he will move quickly to fill the vacancies for the Division of Behavioral Health and the Division
of Children and Family Services. Green has been overseeing those areas in the interim.

e The Region is monitoring a number of interim studies which may have an impact of the behavioral health
system of care should they come to fruition. Kreifels provided a brief overview, including the introducing
Senator for the following: LR 136, LR 150, LR 171, LR 199, LR 201, LR 202 and LR 204. Regional
Administrators will be meeting with Senators to ensure they are informed of the challenges the Regions have
experienced in drawing down funds and that they understand the differences between the Regions and Medicaid.

e Ingrid Gansebom, Region 4 Regional Administrator, along with Kreifels will be presenting an update at
NABHO on the 15%.

o DHHS will be reporting any budget shifts to the Legislature. The Regions have asked to be apprised of what
those shift might be.

e LB433, introduced by Senator Jacobson, did not get out of committee. This bill has to do with seeking more
flexibility and a timely response from DHHS for the Behavioral Health Regions to allow local needs to be met
quickly. This bill may move forward if it appears that the Division is not allowing that flexibility.

Behavioral Health Workforce Stabilization Funds Update: Kreifels reported that these workforce stabilization
funds have been distributed to providers. Young had commented in her earlier presentation about how they used
those funds and are now fully staffed. Providers will submit quarterly reports.

Medicaid Unwind: The State began reviewing Medicaid applicants in April of this year as the Covid emergency
ended and has completed 35 percent of those reviews. Based on July utilization, there is a modest increase in



August 30, 2023

Behavioral Health Advisory Committee Minutes ==

Page 4 of 5

individuals presenting for services without Medicaid. DeShon commented that utilization for one month (8.33
percent of the fiscal year) is at 5.8 percent, which is above the amount for the previous year (4.7 percent). The
Region will continue to closely monitor utilization.

Opioid Remediation Settlement Dollars: Kreifels introduced Trina Janis, who was recently hired as the Opioid
Program Manager for Region V, beginning Monday, August 28. Janis briefly discussed her previous experience
and has been serving as a Professional Partner at the Region for the last two and a half years. This will be a planning
year as meetings with SAMHSA, the Opioid Response Network and other entities will take place. A meeting will
take place in Kearney in September, a summit is being planned for after the first of the year, a subcommittee will
be established, many trainings will take place, and opportunities for learning will be explored. A statewide needs
assessment is due in December.

Emergency System Update:

o There are currently twenty Region V clients at Lincoln Regional Center with two waiting for a bed. The new
bed allocation plan did not provide the relief the Region was anticipating. Initially the Region had access to
between 38-40 beds and the new plan is designating 12. Efforts to help facilitate discharges and mitigate other
areas of concern through the implementation of evidence-based practices have not moved forward. A firm has
been identified which will endeavor to determine whether or not Nebraska / the Regions have the appropriate
number of beds in the system to serve our citizens.

e 988 continues to be underutilized with an average of 53 calls a day. The call center is staffed to take up to 150
calls per day. Mobile crisis teams have been activated 40 times to date.

Lancaster County ARPA Collaborative Project — Family Resource Center: This project continues to move
forward. The intention is to release a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for the youth and family crisis response
center by September 11. Services to be offered are mental health respite and crisis response to include crisis
psychotherapy and community support. A timeline for moving forward through this process has been established
and it is anticipated that recommendations will be on the BHAC agenda for the November 1 meeting.

Recovery & Wellness Engagement & Outreach Center: The Region has moved forward with efforts to establish
outreach centers which would include one center in Lincoln and four in rural counties. This will be a peer-run
service though participants will be enrolled in a concurrent service. The goal for these centers is to provide
encouragement and support for individuals living in recovery. The Region is working in collaboration with
Wellbeing Initiative and to date no locations have been set. Kreifels noted that funding is available in the Regional
allocation, partly due to the fact that the Voluntary Crisis Response Center for youth will not be drawing down
funding this year. Several barriers were noted, including transportation. The goal is to use supports and systems that
are already in place and partner with them.

Strategic Planning Efforts for FY 23-24: Kreifels has met with public health directors and SAMHSA Regional
Director Kim Freese, was in the office for a day and a half to discuss strategies for system transformation. Freese
will present information regarding strategic planning including Certified Community Behavior Health Clinics
(CCBHC) at a future BHAC meeting.

BHAC Bylaws: BHAC bylaws will be reviewed and revised and brought to the BHAC for approval.

Regional Prevention Coalition:

e Morrissey noted that mental health concerns within schools is a top priority with anxiety and depression
affecting many students, a by-product of the Covid pandemic. Morrissey stated that the Coalition leads are
incredible and perform their efforts with little funding; however, priorities have changed, and people are falling
away from the table. Prevention is looking at coming under one umbrella, a Regional Coalition distinct from
the Region V Regional Coalition which would allow Coalitions to work more collectively though funding
would continue for local coalitions.

e Nebraska has applied for a Partnership for Success grant which would provide $365,00. The application is still

pending review. :



August 30, 2023
Behavioral Health Advisory Committee: Minutes
Page 5 of 5

Network Continuous Quality Improvement / Regional Data Overview: Rourke provided a very brief overview
of this report, which is due quarterly. The report includes statistics on employment and stable living as well as
persons in the labor force. Both measures are positive for the Region. Action plans and strategies for improvement
are noted. The report also includes data regarding waitlist, EPC, and service enhancement measures.

Wellbeing Initiative Quarterly Report: Provided for your information.
Year-end 22-23 Capacity Utilization Summaries: Provided for your information.
FY 22-23 Training Plan: Provided for your information.

OTHER BUSINESS:
Knight expressed her excitement and gratitude that a mini-BETA is scheduled for Fillmore County this fall.

ADJOURN
o There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 12:04 p.m.

IMPORTANT DATES

September 11 —10:15 a.m. — RGB Meeting at Region V Services
September 14 —9:00 a.m. — Regional Prevention Coalition
September 18 — Network Provider Meeting / Teams

November 1 — 10:00 a.m. — BHAC Meeting / Hybrid



sferua(] pue sapqisrug|o¢ judy

V/N SoWoINQ A19A039Y

syuaprou] [eoni) 7 speaddy ‘ssoueAstD/spurejdwo)

VN V/N VN V/N JUOUIISIAUTY/JUSWOURYUF SIIAIDG

V/IN (£707 1aquaoa-Ang) are) Jo uondsoiad

(£207 19quardag-Anr) moraay Airend
1€ uef

s[eIUS(] pue SAqI3Iou]

V/N sowroonQ A12A005Y

sjuoptouy [eanuy) 29 speaddy ‘ssoueastin/sjure(dwo)

X X X X V/IN X X X X X X X VIN 151 s103091(] JO preog AousBy| 1 AON

V/N V/N V/IN V/N V/N JUSULSIAUTSYAUSWIIURYU IJIAIG

VN (g0t sung-[udy) matasy Anpend

s[erua(] pue saqi3nau| 1€ 100

V/IN SOWooM() A19A009Y]

syuoptony [2on1) 7 s[eaddy ‘saouessuin/siurejduio)

V/N V/IN V/N VN | N | VN | VN | VN | VIN VN | VN | VN | VN | VN | VN (y7 A4 - SuoSuo Apuaimo [e) spenuooqng| [ 100
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X slejoy| S8y
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X sonpaydg 99 vz Ad| T AIng
X X VN X V/IN X X X X X X V/N  [powemsu] "qer] O B 1d
X X X X X X X X X X souemsu] AJIqery 10940
X X X X X X X X QouRINSU] Gl [BUOISSAJOI] 1pIr0Ig Aq
X X e X % X X X X souemsuy ‘duro)) 10 o[qeIIe A 2re sjuswannbay
J)e(] AN(J dduUBINSU] pue
X X X X X X X X X Souelnsu] "qery ‘Yo J0J0 SIUSLLDIRIS [BIOURUL] PAAPNY
X X X X X X X X X Souemsu] ANI[Iqer [eI9UdD
X V/N  [luswajerg [eloueuld paypny
= @ @] > T | 95 | 28 | 2E | £ & =] BQ @) Te | 8% |20
= | 2| 25 |g5 |52 | S5 25|22 |B5| 5 [28| 2 | &% |¢g¢ 198
O S &g &8 | &8 =5 =8 a8 < & ) a g 2 e | 2«|gB2
2 | o E=| g8 g gL & 25 = 5 E e g3 | &5 |E2B
® = e o ) = = @ S 8 =8 &S S 5 = o S & s= |EF m
= 28 5 8 = £a &= = | o= 3 s 5 =% 22 |=m 2
w — — E-] -
5 E = | § 2 2| g% = | F T e =
= B o @ o] @ B B
“ | & ' ' _ = =

yT-€7 Ad
LHO4dHTd INFINEDVYNVIA



a1n30tU3s uodn paarSe 199w jou pip) aje[duwosu]
p pt i

(uorsuaixa paroidde ou yum) areT -1

(uorsuajxa paaordde yim 10 swl Uo) Juasald :X

YoSL %29 | %001 %E9 | %001 | %03 %56 | %98 | %001 | %I8 | %001 | %16 | %S6 | %001 | %6 [3ed O aueydwo) Jo %

0z 127 L 91 £T 19 (44 (44 [44 91 <l (44 (44 6 I IUST EOAT S an(g g0,
€l €l VIN €1 €l €1 €1 €l €l €1 €l €1 €l €l €l PaAIeoay sHoday Avede) Apjeap sAne[UINY
L 8 L € 01 T 6 6 6 € T 6 6 9 T pa1oadxy spusumnoocy
ST €1 L ot 1 X4 4 1 | 6l (44 £l SI 0T ¥4 61 14! . SWILY, WO PIAIINY [EI0 L,
8 S V/N L €1 01 4! 01 €1 01 €1 11 (4t €1 (4t PaA20aYy spoday Koede)) AR sanemum)
L 8 L € 01 (4 6 6 6 € [4 6 6 9 T PIATS0SY SIUAWMO0(

JUSUNSIATINY/JUIWIDURYUH 3JTAIG

(¥zoT sunp-Arenuer) a1e)) Jo uondaoiag

(¥T0T WoreN-Arenue() matady Aend)

1€ &g
S[eIud(] pue So[qIBIauf

sawoomQ A19A009Y

suapIou] [eoniy) % seaddy ‘sooueasuny/symerdwo)

<
Z
S
Z
<
2z

V/N JUSUISIAUIDY JUSWAOUBYUF IOTAIIG

(£2707 19qua33(J-19q0100) MIIATY Arfeng)

[72] [77] [
s Z | 9F |c2 |%9E |22 |25 |55 |E5| F [E9| & |E5 | BE (592
e =z z g &3 dg | g8 £ £ % e = e = e 3 s e EE [8E 2
A Z 3 g = =g 2 [~} A% @ & E o = 2 ® 558
1% o s e.B a8 <1 =0 o 8 »n 2z - = < » O,
] s | oz |EZ |85 |52 |23 129 € |2E| % |22 | s |58
® g s | £ S| 28| 8% sl2s| & |8=| ¢ |25 |25 |B5¢8
- T E] M m o o o] o [ 2 - —_ a0
= = 5] ) e =
= & g 2 = S s 3 ® = & &
E|& 3 sl E® g g
=
=3 ' ' ) =2 =

yYT€T Ad
LHOdHY INFINTDVNVIA




80% Attendance Report for FY 23-24

(As of 9/25/23)

Network Provider Meetings

Team Meetings

Regional Quality Improvement

Network
P id 5 | e 5 o b ) 2
rovider " 22|82 - 2|22 »|E '§ = E
AHHHHHHERARAREEHEHEHHE R R
NEHEEIHEEHB R EE ERE R REEEHE R E < =
HE BB B H E E RS E B P S A 1 -~ x >
ACT X A 1 2 50%
Blue Valley X X 2 2 100%
The Bridge X X 2 2 100%
CenterPointe X X 2 2 100%
Goodwill Ind X X 2 2 100%
HopeSpoke X X 2 2 100%
Houses of Hope X X 2 2 100%
IBHS X A 1 2 50%
Luth.eran X X 2 ’ 100%
Family
M.H.A. X X 2 2 100%
MHCC X X 2 2 100%
St. Monica’s X X 2 2 100%
TeleCare X X 2 2 100%
*September Network Provider Meeting Cancelled 24 26 92%



Regional Governing Board Report

for
Behavioral Health Advisory Committee
November 1, 2023

Recommendations from the August 30, 2023, BHAC meeting were presented to the Regional Governing Board on
September 11,2023. See the Board minutes, posted at https:/regionSsystems.net/who-we-are/regional-governing-
board/ for details. The Board took the following actions:

FY 22-23 Year-end Contractual Agreements: The Board approved the remaining contract agreements based on the
year-end shifts as recommended by the BHAC.

FY 23-24 Contractual Agreements: The Board approved all Contractual Agreements for Mental Health First Aid,
Prevention and Miscellaneous contracts as recommended by the BHAC.

Voluntary Crisis Response Center (VCRC) Request for Proposals (RFP) Recommendations: The Board approved
the recommendation to move forward with Integrated Behavioral Health Services to provide this service, as
recommended by the BHAC.

FY 22-23 Site Visit Report Summaries: Final site visit reports for FY 22-23 for The Bridge Behavioral Health (BBH),
HopeSpoke, Houses of Hope / TASC / Touchstone, Integrated Behavioral Health Services, Lutheran Family Services,
Mental Health Association of NE, Mental Health Crisis Center, and St. Monica’s were approved by the Board, as
recommended by the BHAC.

FY 23-24 Risk Management Plan: The Board approved the Risk Management Plan as recommended by the BHAC.
FY 23-24 Performance Improvement Plan (PIP): The Board approved the PIP as recommended by the BHAC.

DHHS Audit Monitoring: DHHS Network Audit Monitoring, Prevention Audit Monitoring, and the Professional
Partner Program were approved by the Board, as recommended by the BHAC.

Other action / discussion taking place at the September 11, 2023, Regional Governing Board meeting for your
information:

Financial Report: Kreifels presented the financial report through July 2023. With 8.33 percent of the fiscal year completed,
total expenditures stand at 10.26 percent and are approximately two percent over budget.

Employee Recognition: Pohlmann recognized Sandy Morrissey for 20 years of service to Region V. Morrissey’s current
position is Prevention Director. Pohlmann highlighted Morrissey’s responsibilities, recognized her many strengths, and
thanked her for her invaluable service to Region V Systems.



| ‘UonEOIf1IBI 10J PIEOg dT) 210J3q YSNnox

3o 1 9%ed

q 3q [[IM 11 20UBLIBA %G € UBY 1912013 SI JUNOWE J] "UONEIOZ3U JOBU0D uodn JuaSunuo),

SIUAUIAITY [¥NJIRIIUO)) SUWIIISAS A UOISHY

lm ‘siourwr 0} Buj|jas 1ou a1e DVHE Pue ‘SIaPIA0IJ JI0MION SWIDISAS J0BIUOD) 01124 £20T S1 Ao [oX12d 31e1S BYSEIQAN
sjubuysijqeiss Suinsse ur diysioutted yinoAuswIaoIojus Me| B 911 ‘wea | souerjdwo)) aesodio) A uoidoy HIA-SHHA | =g eyseiqan o1 629°g$ o1 dn | - €202 ‘1 Iaquizidag
uonowoid yijeay jejusw pue . ]
n ) I OVHE PUB ‘SIOPIAOI] YI0MIAN SwalsAg 10B1IU0D LUonIRoD 20T ‘0€ dunf LONI[B0D KMoy 131580UE ]
$10108) YS1I paje[al ‘uonuaAaid asnqe ULISqNS SSIIPPR 0] JI0MIEL ‘urea] aouenduwod a1210d100) A uoray HEG-SHHA fQunos 151SEOUET 0} 000°ECS - €202 ‘1 g 11800 o]
uonuasid 01391E1S YSHIAVS 9ZI[HN SUOI[e0D Aunuio) :
uonjowold yjjeay [ejusw pue i . d
DVHSE Pue ‘SISpIA01d JI0MIBN SLAlSAS 19BIUOD yiusunedaq ylesH ¥20T "0¢ [HdY Jusunseda(] Yi[es
¢ E ! H 101181 1583YIN0S
$10108] 3SU PaJEjal ‘uojuaaald asnqe SOUBISqNS SSAIPPE 0 JIOMIWELY “ureo souendwion sresodio) A uoday HEa-SHHA 1oSI(] 1SBAYINOS 01 000°0€S - €20T ©1 JoquisAoN amw
uonusasid 18s1ens YSHIAVS 921N SuoTi[eo) Aunuwiio) ’
OVHE PUE ‘SISpIAOI] YI0MIIN ouj £207 ‘g1 1oquiandag .
i - e auj ‘aaneniuf Suiaq(a
Suiutel) 101R11119%] [ JeUILRS JVUM 10J Buipuny spla0ld ‘wea |, sourduoy atexodio) uRq(Rem S:d -4dS 2118 ‘aanjeru] BuSqraA O 000°SS - €207 °L 1equiaidag [ “aAnRDIU] SUIAG[[9M
(sjony ERNLIN
BAJUO 0149 w1 puy SundesIuo,
asodang Ag paMIIAY iy Surpuin g janowy 33e1uo) poliag awily fyuy Sundesuo)
uonudIAdLg
*§19B.13102 359Y] dA0adde pazog ay) pudamwwoddL 01 DVHE Y WOIJ UONOTA :PIPIAIN U0NIY
Junowe joenuod pasoidde
JeuISo woljy %901 JO 358aI0U]
‘BaIe DVHH Pue ‘SIapIACI] Y10MIN SWISISAS 19B1U0D) 20T ‘0g dunr JuSUIERL] 7 FUIESUNON U] SAIBIS0SSY
|eoyde18098 SWaASAS A uo13ay Ul SNPE 10 SIO[AISS ASNQE MDULISANS ‘wea] souerjdwo)) aresodio) A uoiday H8a-SHHA jusuneal], % - €202 ‘1 AInf ) :
Bu1[asuno)) U] SABIIOSSY
01 678°C618
‘Junowe 10e1)U0d paroldde
em1I0 W0l %G1 JO 958aIOU]
eale [eo1yde180ad swalskg DVHE pue ‘sIopIACId JIOMION SWISISAS 10B1UOD 70T o.m aunf S001A1S YI(BAH [BIOIARYRE] PaEI3anu]
A U139y Ul S)[NPE I0J SIOIAIIS 3SNQE DULISANS PUB {}[BIY [RIUIN ‘wea |, souerjdwo)) ajerodio) A uoidoy HIQ-SHHA SIDIAIDS - €20T ‘1 Anr ’ :
Y)[ea} [elolarySg paleidalu]
01 Z5H°68¢%
“Junowre 19e1U09 pasoidde
. [enIS1I0 WoLy %48 JO 3seaIou] .
'BaIR DVHSE Pue ‘sIap1Aoid d10MmI1aN SwialsAg JOBIIUOY) ’ 20T ‘0€ dunf orEnela
[eo1yde180a3 swa)sAS A uoiFey Ul S} npe 10) SI0IAISS Y[y [BIUSN ‘wea] aoueidwo)) ajeiodio) A uoidoy HY9a-SHHA SOl - €20T ‘1 AInp %Rl
01 699°68%
(s)yoyny 24N0g
asodang A PIMIAIANY VAT D junoury 3deI3U0) poLIdg dung, Anpug Supdesyun)
JIPIAOLJ HIOM)IN
*$)0813103 3ISaY) dA0adde pieog 3yl puaWWOIII 03 DVHE dY) Wol] UOHOIA :PIPIIN UoIPY
"JUNOWE J0BI1IUOD paAoIdde
‘(d19) 20n0e1d PalLIOjul 30UIPIAD ] [eUISHIO WOYJ %6 JO 358AIOU] .
pue (gg4) 2onoe1d paseq-9ouapias ue se (1gq) Adeiay], eiotaeyag O.Hmum M””m_m.wﬁﬂwo‘_um H%hwoz mE:M_MMm SE.EQU vzoc o"m u»:_.; Sunnsuo) pue Fuiurel], puljy 2ANMIU]
[2oudael(] Juaweldul 0] ‘YIS ysor Aq ‘UonB)NSuod pue Jurulel], N il ok o AYE oS eliNEs ) Sunnsuo) pue Juwirel], - €20T 1 AIMT
PUIA SATHNMIU] 01 68Z°8SS
SIOMIaN 2Y1 ulyim Jururer Adeiay], 101ARYD UE ‘SIPIAOIJ YI0M]D SwsA oBIIUO )
SHomiaN ayp uryim Supuren (L9Q) Y], [olABYag OVHE P PIAOIJ SHOMIBN wianshs 1eIUOY Kep Suturen 1ad gOpg ¥COT ‘0€ dun( e =
[eonoa(el(] paroidde apiaoid oym s[enpraiput o] JuswAed apiaoid oL, wes], aouerdwo) aelodio) A uoiday H9d-SHHA - €202 ‘11 Ioquadag . :
s10MIaN 21 uigim Sunren (1.gq) Adeiay], Joiaeysg DVHY PUe ‘SI9pIA0Id NI0MISN swaysAg JORIIUOD 20T “0€ dunf
|eonoa[e1(] paroidde apiaoid oym s[enpialput 0] JuswiAed spiaoxd o1 ‘wea], souerdwo) ayeiodio) A uo1gay HEA-SHHO fep Suuren 1ad 0073 - €207 ‘ST I19qUIBAON RIARIS BIES
e £ {s)yaoyny ERITIT
d g POMITATY faswipg Suypuny JUNONUIY JOBAIU0D) IREREINTN | Ampug Sumodrayuo)
dNIBIJ pIsey IUIPIAY
yT-€7 Ad




|
—
i

“UOLEOLTIBI 10} PIEOY Y 210§3q 143N01q 3q |

¥ 30 7 93ed

1A 7§ 9OUBLIBA %461 © uey] 1518913 ST JUNOWE J] "UONRIOZIU 10BIIU00 uodn JuaBUnUO),

*§192.4) 009 952y) A01dde pAEOg Y} PUIWWIIL 0) DVHE Y} Wo.j UOHON 1papIIN uondY

uonoutold yifesy [Buaw pue

TUNOWIE 1ENU0D panoidae
emS1I0 W1} %1 € JO asBaIoU]

ue ‘SI9PIA0I] MIOMIAN Swolsk 1081U0D) $Z0T ‘0f sunf
‘510108 {51 PR3] “UONUIAID SSNGE IDURISANS SSIIPPE O HIOMIIEY U,Mwumr_w Mocm: SH.oo MMS o A :o_momm HEC-SHHA €707 “1 A SOMIDN UOTIUSA31] AJUNOD Y10
uonuasald o1FeAs YSHINVS 921[1n suonieod Aunwao) : : £9010]
s, Snig Aunop 3i0A 01 075°8S
TUNOWE J9RUDD PAADIAde
; guISLI0 WOy ¢ 0 958aI0U
a ad ssnqge uu::o_MﬂEMM._E_Moﬁ” _HM“MH:MMM OVH4 PUE ‘SI9p1A01] SIOMISN swishs WERUOY = i d 20T “0g dunf uontjeed
510102} 3511 POIE[2! “UONUIAAIC 35N ISqns $$3Ipp “wga ], souerdwoy) sjeodio uo1Sa - - €207 ‘1 A Aunuwo) Ayresy Auno) 1akey],
uonuasaid or8a1ens YSHINVS SzZI[n suoHIjeo) Anunwwo) bt fiéwog o 0 SeE HEQ-SHHA Luonieo) Aunwiwod 2 i ’
Apresy Aunop 1946y 01 6L6'8%
TUNOWIE J0B1IU00 paioldde
‘vonowoxd yieay (ejustu pue . [euIS1I0 W0lJ %69 JO 3SBAIOU] .
: 13 OM SUIa)SA JBIIUO aun
‘510108 YSL1 P31R[a] ‘UONUAASId 9SNGE AVUBISQNS SSIIPPE O1 JIoMIwey MHM_@M M”:NWM”MM._MHO Ewo% A coﬂ_m%m ZWO.WIWQ vm%mmomom bs__” uoNI[BO)) UONUIAAIG AUNOD) PIEMAS
uonuaaald o1391e1S YSHINVS 9Z1jun suouleod Aunwwo) : ' £UOI]I|E0D) UOTIUSASI]
Aunoy premas 01 000°11$
JUROWIE 10211U0d paaoidde
‘uonjowold yi[eay [elusw pue . [PUIS1I0 WOI] %98 JO 3SBaIoU] .
A 0MI9 EIIN OBIIUO aun
‘510198] S palg[al ‘uonuaaad asnqe sourISqNS SSAIPPE O} YIOoMIUIEY QMWM M”Hm_m_hwwowhmawuo EM % M_.”og_momm zwo.wzwﬁ gmommomom A _m UOLI[BO) UONUIARIJ AJUNO)) SIOpunes
uonuaaaid o139jens YSHINVS 221{lin suouijeo) Aunwwo) : : #UOUI[EOD) UONUSADI]
funo) s1opunes 01 001°Z1$
JUNOWE 1981000 poAoidde
uonoutoxd Yesy [eIusuI pue . [BUIBLIO W01 %0€ JO 95BIIOU] i
I8
‘510101] YSLI PAIB[T ‘UONUSAAId ISNGE S0ULISQNS SSAIPPE 0} IoMaUILY wwwom( M”MNW_MMWMMMHMM”MMA M:”_MH_M@W mMMwMMUIQ vmmwwmom MH__H UonI[BOY) UOTIUAASIJ AUNOY) 3ulfeS
uonuassid 01391ens VSHIAYS 921N suonijeo) Aunuwuo) ’ ’ £UOI[BOD) UONUSASI]
Auno) aures o1 058°8$
TUNOLWIE PENUDD pascidde
uonjowoad yi[eay [ejusii pue S ISDIKOL] ST - JoRIuo JeuiS110 Wl %0S JO as8aIoU] o —
“510]08] S PaJE[a! ‘UoNUdA3d 9SNQE 3UBISGNS SSIIPPE O} HI0MILELy UnManM wonm_ah.ou MM_B&M % . :oﬂmumm ImD.HmIUID ..qmmomwmo.m_ b:m. UONI[EO)) UOTIUaASIG AIUN0D) UOSIYAL
uorjuassid o13s1ens VSHIAVS SZ1[1IN SUONI[E0D Anuntuwo? ’ ' #UOII[BOD) UOTUAASL
AuUnoy) uosIYS[ 01 $TL'6S
“JUNDLUIE 10BU03 paAoidds
‘uonowoid yyjeay |elusu pue [BUIS1IO W01} %6T JO 3sBAIOU]
: Ug ‘SI3PIA0IJ J10MI SUIISA! JBJJUO T )
‘51010B] YSII PAIL[A] ‘UONUSAR1d aSNQE S0URISQNS SSIIPPE O} jloMowel U.kum,_ml Mocﬂ_ awoo MMS E“V UZ N :o“_m%m WD.EEU wmom o.m n”_“_. uonijeo) SJv Aunod agen
uonusaaid o13a1ens VSHAVS SZ1[IN SUoIfeo) Aunwimo)) i ' HEA-SHHA Luonieo) gzoz L Amr
SdVINl Auno) 38eD 01 001°8$
JUNOWE 12810 paaoldde
‘wonowoid yjjeay [ejusSw pue [euIB110 WOIJ %6 JO 3582109 (uospaeyory
. . UE ‘SIOPIAOI] J10M]D swalsh oRIUO C ¢ )
510108} SU1 PAJE[al “UOUAAId SSNQE SOUBISQNS SSIIPPE 0} SHomauIe]) U.HMMM Mo:m:ah.oo M“M_onl_w % N =M~_momm EWQ%EENO wmom o.m u»:”m. DB ‘53UMEq TOSULO[ “FHELIAN)
uonusaald 91391B1S VSHIAYS SZI[IN SUOTH[EOJ AJUNLIIOD ’ : S £OANBIOQR[[0D £zoz "1 A 3A11e10qE[|0D) AJUN0Y) N0,
AunoQ 1oy 01 005°T$
Junowe aenuod pascidde
‘uonowoid y)[eay [eiusw pug JeurS 10 wolj % JO 9sea1ou]
. i UE ‘SIOPIAOIJ YI0MIS Swa)sA! ORIUIO . "
$10]98] YSUI PajR|al ‘UoTIuAAlId 3SR IDUBISQNS SSIIPPE 0} Y1oMaIulel] U,MMM Mo:m:a_ﬂoo MHM_._on_ e N :o”mum ! w 0 LG o‘m ME.:, uonteo) Aunoy aloul|[iy
uonusaaid 01591e1S YSHIAVS SZI[IN SUOIH[E0) AjTuntuiuo) : 0 A torEsd HEd-SHHA Luonieo) - €0z L AmL
Auno?) a1ow(l 01 0S€63
“JUNDWE 1p8u0d pascadde
‘uonowoxd yireay] [BlUSW pue JeuISI0 Wolj %6/ JO 9583IdU]
. ) B ‘SIOPIAOIJ I A B o ¢
$10108] 3SU paje|al ‘uoljuaadld asnge dUBISGNS SSIIPPe O} J1omswel] U,M_Mum_ MM:EM_M. N ._MHM_MM,”WZ mﬁwg_mm@m . v0e onm ME.:. YINo A Ul $9A31[ag 19Ing
uonuoasid o189)e1S YSHINVS 9211IN SUonIeo) Ajunmuwo) N L o 2 AYHETEE HEd-SHHA KUINO A - Egoc LA
ur $3A31[3g 1opng 01 5Z9° 11§
FHOmnY ERXTIVS
asodan Ag paMajAd : : g
d 1 PIMIJARY Kivunag Suiphny JUROLY IDBNU0D) poLg aunL], Aoy Supaenno)
(panunuo))) uonNuIAdILJ
yT-€T Ad

SHUAWIAISY [BNIILNUO)) SWINSAG A UOIZNY




_12_

“UONBOYTIRI 10§ PIEO] A1) 910J3q 1YFN0Iq 2q [[IM 11 UBLIRA %1

yJo g o8ed

® Uey) Jo1e0lS ST junoure Jj uonenodau joenuod uodn JUABUNUC D

“§19E43U09 3s31]) da01dde pleog Yl PUSIIIINIL 01 DVHE U) WOLJ UOHOJA :PIPIIN UOHIY

‘211SqaM LIOD UB3YZLBIYN[E] A4}

JVHY PUE ‘SI9PIA0I] YI0MIBN swaIshs 10B1U0D YOS AP © . $20Z ‘6¢ Joquaideg o
UO SISPIOSIP ASNSIWL JUB[NWILS PUB 35N proido uo uoyeuLIOjul uonuaaaid “urza souendwion) ae10dio) A uoidoy HEa-SHHA *AOIDDPIY 01 00S 0TS - €20z ‘0¢ Joquuardog DP!
apiaoad pue ueoseN 90y Sunowoid uSredwes pe [ENFIP € 518310 0, :

_ AVHE PUE ‘SISPIAOI JIOMIBN SwalsAS 10BNU0D YOS OABY 30T 01 000 $20Z ‘o€ Jaquaidag S 50
SISLI0 350pIaA0 P1o1do ayj Uo $31185 03pIA Med INOjJ € JO UOKEBALD ‘wiea, souendwo) aesodioD) A uotday HEA-SHHA * A 207 03 000°6% - €202 ‘S 12qUI2A0N b 20T

‘SI5110 9s0p1aA0 proido ay1 Suipsedal DVHE PUB “SI3PIAOI] YIOMISN ey 10B1U0D YOS eipa Bud[y 0 0ZES $Z0T ‘0¢ Joquiaidas (Surweang XMz - X4I) €901)
(VSd) SlusWaounouuy 32IA13S d1{qng JO 1SLIPEOI] PUE UOLEAID ‘urga ], souerjdwo)) ajesodio) ' HEd-SHHA e - €202 ‘S1 JaqueAON eIpaA eydly

‘15110 950p1aA0 protdo sy Buipiedas DVHE PUue ‘S1apiACId YI0MIaN Bpop eydly 10811U0)) YOS e $Z0T ‘0¢ Joquiardog (Surwreans TOL)
VSd) SIUAWIDUNOULY 3DIAIAS J1[qN JO 1SEIPEOIq puB UOHIEAID ‘wiea ], soueldwo)) serodio) : HIa-SHHA ik - €20T ‘S 1 19QUIDAON BIpSA Byd|y

S !

‘s15110 350p18A0 ploido ay) Suipledal OVHSE PUB ‘SIopIA0L] MI0MIN —— 10e1u0)) 4OS AP OGO $20T ‘o€ tequiaidss (Bunweang 74 - XA €901)
(VSd) SIUAWOUNOULY IDIAIDS 1[N JO ISBOPEOI] PUE UOHERAID ‘wea ], souer|dwio)) ayerodio) ) HIAa-SHHA * - €707 ‘ST JaquaAoN 2IpajAl Byd|y

S15119 3s0pIaA0 proido ayy Suipiesal DVHE PUE ‘SI3PIA0LJ YIOMIIN TG 1981U00) JOS T ol s 570z ‘o€ 1oquialdeg (Sutweang - XAIN £'901)
(¥Sd) SIUSLIAdUNOULY 30IAISS 1{GN JO 1SEIPROIG PUL UONEII) ‘wiea ], 2ouerjdwo)) aresodio) : Hga-SHHA - - €20T ‘S| I9qUaAON eIpan eyd|y

‘S1S110 950p12A0 protdo sy Buipiedas DVHE PUB ‘SI9PIAOIJ NIOMISN Tt 101U0D) MOS T $20T ‘0¢ Taquiaidag (€601 W YOI
(WSd) SIUdWIIDUNOULY 3IIAISS J1(qNd JO 1SBOPBOIq PUB UOKEAID ‘wea ], souerdwo)) ageiodio) : HIa-SHHA e - €207 ‘ST 19qUISAON eIpaA eyd|y

'$IS119 350p19A0 plo1do ay1 Fuipiedal DVHSE Pue ‘s1oplA0ld YI0MmIaN eipow 2ydiy joeNU0D) YOS eipa 2udly o1 €218 +207 ‘o€ 1oquiaideg (Surweans - €'€01 WA YOI
(VSd) SIUaWaoUNOUUY 301AISS 91[qnd JO 1S8IPE0Iq PUE UOTIBIID) ‘wes ], doueldwo)) se1odio) ' HEd-SHHA . - €Z0C ‘S 1 JoqUIAON vIpay eydiy

'S1s119 9s0pIaAo protdo ayy Surpresar DJVHH PUB ‘S19pIACI{ YIOMIaN — 101U0D YOS e T E $70Z ‘0¢ Joquiaidag (A £901)
(VSd) S1uswasunouly a01AIag 91[qnd JO 1Sedpe0Iq PUB UONESID ‘wea] soueldwo)) ajeiodio) ’ HAd-SHHA e - €T0T “S1 JaqUWidAON eIpa eydiy

'$15110 250p19A0 protdo sy Fuipiedal JVHE PUE ‘SI9PIACL] YIOMIIN 19B11U0D) YOS . +20T ‘0€ Joquiidag (6'96 X1)

eipay eydiy BIpON Bud(V 01 p1S°cE

(YSd) SIUSWIdUNOULY 321AIG TGN JO 1SBIPROI] pUR UOTIRAID qwiga 1, souerndwo)) aresodio) : HAId-SHHA i - €207 ‘S 1 1oqUIdAON eipaN eyd|y

'SISLI0 950p19A0 proido sy Suipedal JVHE Pue ‘S13DPIACI] JI0MISN 1e1U0)) YOS . +20T ‘0f Joquaidag (sze1g au) 1-$01)

.. ] d d

(WSd) SIUSUIDUNOULY 3ITAISS J1[qnd JO 1SEPLOIq pUB UOLBID ‘wwa ], souetidwo)) s1e1odio) PR HIa-SHHA +EIPIN BUCIY 0 895 6§ - £20T ‘ST IaquIsAoN eIpaA eydly

‘§1S119 950p19A0 protdo ay) Suipiedal DVHE PUe ‘SI3PIAOI] MIOMISN T 19B1U0D) YOS T S 20T ‘o€ Joqualdag (6’26 TOVI 24L)
(WSd) SIUAWIdUNOUUY 30IAISG J1[qn{ JO 1SEIPEOIQ PUB UOTIRAID ‘wiea], souerjdwo)) srerodio) : HEa-SHHA el = €707 ‘S1 19qUIBAON eIpaN BUd|Y

‘ugredwies ¢zog supodoi§ sy) 10§ s1eyeay) JVHE pue ‘SIapia0ig JI0MmIaN dnoip 19e1U0)) YOS $Z02Z ‘0¢ Jequiaydag

SNoIBA SnolIeA Ul sjods moysaid pue 1a1k1-31d puodas og Jo aSeydINg

¥dno1D BIPSA SNOIBIAL 01 OES°GES

dnoin BIpajA SnoIBIA

‘wea ] souetjdwio)) sjelodio) RIpO ShotelN | HIQ-SHHA - €202 ‘ST JaquiaaoN
‘SIOPIOSIP 35N PUE 3SUSIW JUBNWIS PUB JOPIOSIP SN P1oido 103 SIOTAINS 2 TR IODIAGL SOMIS swsisk _— . §

poddns K19A0091 pue “Juswieas ay) Hoddns pue “1opiosip ssn proido nw”mwom Monﬁ 9”0 MMEQ PN Eou_m N 1IBINOD AOS XUI04I2NU3)) 01 120°5T$ i .oN - %m PUILEiE e

10 JUSWIIBA} Y} 10§ suonedipaur pasoidde jo uoisiaozd 10§ 1oe1U0D - fduied arelodiod A ooy HEEESHHC - €207 Q€ 2quuaiias
(s)zoysny aanog

asodung Ag PIMIAARY JENU0D) JuNoWy 33843u0)) [ENULY POLIdJ L, Appug Supdenuo)
Suppung * P
Liewi g
(uOS) asuodsay prordQ apimarers
yT-€7T Ad

SHUAWAIIZY [BN)IBIIU0)) SWIISAS A UOISIY




_13_

“UONIBILIIe] 10} pIeog 3

730 ¥ 98ed

1 210J9q 1YSN01q 3q |[1Ar ) FOUBLIBA %G ] B UBL 10]e31T ST JUNOURE 31 “uonenofau 19e1U00 todn JUIBUNUOD

*s1aea3u0) 3531} dA0sdde preog IY) puUdTIW0IA 0] DVHE Y) WOIJ UOIIOA PIPIIN UOHIY

-1oddns A19A0931 BUTY93s S[BnpIAIpUL

0] SI0IAISS 0} §§9908 pue JudiaFedus 1s1ueq Mo[ ap1roid o3 51 DVHE Pue ‘SIapIA0l] YIOMISN SWIaISAS 1RIUOD # U] 20T ‘0€ 19quisidag ouf “aneniuy SuIsq[e
1USIUT 8y ], "SSNUNOD [2IN1 INOJ Ul SIGIUSD SI[[SIES PUe U[OdUlT Ul JIUSD ‘urga ], souerjduio)) aeiodio) A uorday HEA-SHHA | “eAneniuj Sureq(iam 01 9€5°1L5$ - £207 ‘1 32q010 1 SATIENII SUIIIPM
yorannQ) 79 uswadesuy ssaufap 29 A194003Y © Jo Juswdojsasq
ssa13o1d Suppoen pue ue(d e Suuedaid pue ‘ref woly ases|al 19ye
S991A13sS 01 SSAU[[! [euatl yim 9doad Funosuuos ‘s3SSBIIS UOISIAIP
pUR JUSWIS0IOJUS MEB] ATIO3)S “SIaLiieq Surpuny pue Ad1jod [200] L —— — - ‘e saquioido
puE 2je1s AJ1uapt “Aioedes 201AI9S pUE JUSUINBLN) duIUreX? ‘ssa1501d o.<Im p PIA01d HOMISN WSAS LSWASAG A uo1day o1 y£¢ 66$ Y20 0€ 1Rquuaices funo) 19)seoue
’ i wes ] souerjduro)) sjeiodio) A uo13ay ) - €202 °1 1890100
50BI) 0 SAINSEAW ADY {7 UO SNO0J B UIIM 91E1I[1o') pue “juswalduul : ;
‘a1eu1p1002 0} st asodind Arewiuid sy, ‘s[rel ut SSauffl [EIuUSLU
s apdoad Jo JaquInu 31} 9INPal 0} SANENIUI [BUONEU SY} Juswd[dui]
(s)aopny. 201n085
asady i Ad %
] ndg A pamalAIY Lisumag Suipung JUNOURY WDEIINOT) PoLIag 3wL], Apug SupBnuo)
RETTTS)
ye-€T Ad

SJUSWIAIZY [BN)IRIIUO)) SUIISAS A UOISNY




|
g 3dwsny 9pINS oy
she1s olneiyohsd uanedu)

g ndweny
aphins.

404 SUSIA ¥3
L

:appIns Aq pa1g

g :sidwany

apiIns

G 2dweny
apIINg 40}
sAp3S oLeiydAsd
—uaneduy
0 Jdweny
apINs
10} SHSIA Y3

| :2piIns
Ag pa1a

Z1 S1dwshy ; =

3pPINS

(%) L2E
:Remyied SulAal
19]002d

apidIng
Aq yaeaq pue ‘sydwiayly apiding ‘suoljezijeydsoy

|

(%2v) 699
:Bulesunod
| suesy
|eY1a7 PaAladay
1ON PId

(%5 1)
L€ :padoansg
LON ueld f1ajes

8

SaWI021N0

(%81) G09'L i
:onne3aN ..4 5
passassy ..‘_,...,

-._ p..

(¢

{%28) 509°L
DANISOJ PISSISSY

{o6¥72) 82
'SINoH 8
um dn
-MO|104 ON

Aemyied Suian
YoM 3317 3Y3 uo 3|doad Jo} siudwiuioddy passii

1CE
Aemyied
Buiar] yuom
a4 3y

uo a|doed

S}uo

e

USIAN Y
1o uonezijendsoH e 431y paloeuo) 3|doad Jo JaquinN
} | SHSIA 3/|endsoH
(%12) L22'L
pPaUS3IDS JION
(%12) ¥Z5
ISIy °pINS (%9%) LEL'Z
10} POSSISSY aAneSaN
Ajjeaund LON

{%64) 0G6'L ISty SpPINS
10} pIssassy Ajjeauyd

pPouURIg

| judwijjoiug

SINILSAS A NOIDIY

L




9pIDINS J0J YSi 18 950Y3 AJl1udpl 19119( 0] JUDWISSIsse

(SHSS-D) 9jeds Suiley AlJBARS BpIdINS-BIqUIN|O) By} Suisn Sullojdxa aJe sa1ouase |ealul|2-uoN

3|ge|ieAe 10U S| UBIDIUID B USYM

3s14 apIdINS ssasse 0] 5|00} pajioddns Ajjeaundwia asn 01 J4e1s pasuadij-uou duisn 8uliojdxa aJe sa1duadY
Y3|eaHIUA) BIA AjgeI0oU Sl 3PIdINS 10} pazijelidsoy

34 OYM 950Y1 UO Uoljew.ojul uleiqo o3 shem guiiojdxe si aUdj|a3x3 40 WA1SAS ap1dINg 0197 3y L

)SK 9PIDINS JO JUBLUSSISSE [BDIUI|D

e SuIuIR1qO0 10U YSIJ SPIDINS 104 3ARISOd U33IIS OYM 350U} 104 de8 payiuapi ayl Suissauppe aJle sa1ouady
Suljasunod sues|Al |eYIdT Ul Jjels J1isyl ujuies) aie sajouagde a|diInNl

Aemuaed SUiA] YHOM 837 9yl uo sapijod Jisy) Suimainas Jo Suidojanap aue sa1duady

}40M13U 3y InoySnouy) syuswissasse puedxs pue puny 03 suoindo 3unojdx3

Sa11IARDY JuswaAnosdw) AljenD

saioijod Aemyied Suiar] yuom 9311 SuidojaAap aJe siaplaoad 10N

JUaWISSasse ue Jaye padojanap Suljasunod sueaw [ey3a) pue suejd A1ajes aiow aiam a3y ]
paseaJaul ysi dpIdINns Joj passasse 3jdoad jo Jaquinu a3yl

aA3IYde 0] 1NJIYIP SUIBWJ SUIUDIIS YSI SPIJINS B DAI9I3 9|doad ||e Buinsu]

€ZA4 01 paJjedwio) ZZA4 — SuoleA1asqo

saiuniioddQ juswanoadwi Ajljenp apiding 0497

SWILSASA ZO_Omﬁ



_16_

*J19pINOId
}10MI3N 31 Ag dn 135 51 ss3204d [eadde J9ASIBYM SMO||0} PAAIS UosIad By L “Jule|dwod 8y} d1e|P3wWal 0} JBPIACI }IOMIBN 3yl Aq uayel

uonoe ay1 yum Addeyun sj panias uossad ay1 UsyM Jufe|dLu0d USTHIM [BULIO) JBY/SIY JO SWOIINO 33 JO UOHEISPISUOII] PUB M3IAL 104 panJas
uossad e Aq apew s| 1sanbaJ [ewuoy e st [eadde uy "sjutejdwod Ua11lim 10J ]00104d PIYSIGRISS S 13PIN0I] FIOMISN 343 MOJ|04 [IIM sjuie|dwod
yons Suissasppe ‘Supjeads AjjeisusD ‘|SA3| |BWIOJUI UB 1B PIA|OS3J 3] J0Uued a2ueARLIZ YINS YdIYM 10} JOPIAOI HIOMISN € 4O JOIABYS( JO BlNes]
‘sapIAOe ‘suoiiesado syl Jo 109dse Aue yum uonoeysessIp ssaidx 03 PaAJIs Uosiad e Ag 90UBARLIE USLILIM [BULIO) B SB PIULSP 318 sjuiejdwo)

s|eaddy pue sjulejdwo)

(syusprou| [eo134D) Aduaioil] pue (sjeaddy ‘syute|dwioD) uoloeysiies :Aiodale) aunses|A J1oMIeN
YD £7-77 A4 40} 1oday sluapiou| [eanu) pue ‘sjeaddy ‘sjulejdwo) JJ0MISN J9pIAoId SWIS1ISAS A UOISaY

SWILSAS A NOID3Y



_17_

-uaw1eas} Jo uoneinp ay} Suipsedal €7-7Z A4 40j [eadde T sem a1ayL

T M € AIm

o
&\va
o
,mv oo&
@OO /fnw X o)
N Ny P
o o & S
. P (o) &Y J
R R N e &
2 2 ? & &
F-- & e ’
0 ‘ ! O 0 -
T 4
[&
€ : 9 ¥
(1
g 9
9
A 8
8
0T
[4
1A
y 97
91
8T
81

|B10} 7T A4 03 patedwo) €2-7C Ad
10} Aso3aie) Surejdwo) Jad uoi3ay dY3 4o} sjuiejdwo) Jo Jagquiny |e1ol

SWILSAS A NOIDIN

Aor



_18_

‘papJendajes

pue ‘paJoluow ‘payoes Ajareridoidde Jou d1e YdIYm s9oUeIsgns [eSa] spuyy AduaSe uy :puno4 adueisqns [eda]
"juepuaep Jo Jhuled

31 S| OYM 4O SS3|pJeSal JaWNSUOD e SIAOAUI 1BY] HNSMme|/uolide |eSa| B Ul PIAjOAUL S| JBPIACId JIOMIB :SUOIPY |edaT,
'34Nn1eU Ul |eIUSPIddY ‘SulllieH }|9S 10N 1J3UNSU0) 0} Ainfuj

"J3Yloue 01 uosiad auo wouy

paJajsuesy uiaq susdoyied Jusnaid 031 110440 ue ul saonoe.ad [041u02 uoipajul Ajdde jou pip Aduady :jo43uo) uoiddju|
‘Auij1084 3Y3 pUNOJE JO Ul S3dUR)SANS [eF3f|I spuly Aduage uy :punod aduelsqns [e33)||

-aAL3| 0] JUSIUI J19Y} JO AduaSe ay3 SulAyIou INOYUM 3| pue JUSWIEIN] [BRUSPISSI UL SI Jawinsuo) :juawado|3l

‘s|ie1ap a1endosdde Jaylo Aue pue yieap

0 asned AJ19ads asea|d ‘uoi12|d w02 3PIIINS 10 SpidIWoy 01 3Np Ajjeoi10ads 10U pue palinddo eyl syieap ||V 43430-Yiead
“ay| 1oy Suipua Ajasodind ‘apidins sa1a|dwod uostad v :uonajdwo) apnins Aq yieag

uosJad Jayjoue Jo yieap ay} sasned uosiad auQ :3pPIWOoH Aq yieaq

“ezUBN|JU]| ‘S3|SEIIA ‘Y3nod Suidooym ‘siyjeday ‘sisojndagny :apnjoul

sajdwiex3 "SSP SNOIII8)UI/3]|eIIUNWWIOD B 0} P3SOdXa BWIRI9] JO UM PIRIWpE JSWNSUO)) :aseas|q 3|qednunwiwo)
‘wisiuegJo 10 Juage ue Jo Isea|aJ [BIUBWLOIIAUS ‘Yse|ds

‘spunom ainpund “11s B|pPaaU :3pNn|oul sajdwexd BWOS ‘Ises|ds Jo [1ds ‘Aanful ‘quapidde uy :S3UaPIIIY snop.ezeyolg
(le2180j0YdAsd/jeaisAyd/[eqlan) JBWNSUOI B Sjnesse/swiey Jagquuiaw Jels t1awnsuo) o3 jJeis-asnqy
(le2180joydAsd/|eoisAyd/|eqian) Jyeis synesse/swiey JSWNSUO) :§4e1s 0} JDWNSU0)-3sNqy
(1ea180joyoAsd/jeaisAyd/|egian JaWNSUOD JaYJOUe SNESSe/Suliey JaWNSUO) :43WINSU0) 0} JBWNSU0)-3SNqQY

:podau siy) 40J sa110891e2 SUIMO||04 BY) OUI ||B SIUSPIDU| [BIIHID

*J9PINOI YIOMISN dY1 JO PaAIas uostad e jo Buiag-||am Jo ‘Alajes ‘yijeay |ejuaw ‘|eaisAyd
(1 01 BWINEJ} JO WJBY SNOLISS O [BIIUBISYNS JO HSI JUBDIIUSIS @ 918340 18y} SUOIIENLIS JO SIUIAS pa8a||e 40 |enloe 2Je Su3pIdu| [edIUAD

S1UAPIdU| [BD1IID

SWILSAS A NOIDIN

)

it

€l
T

T1
01

a4 N o o<



_19_

‘uoisinsadns/ssauaieme Aduase Jo Ino $903 Jey) Sulsapuem papusneun

$a2UaLIadX OYM BIJUSWIP/S, 4DWIAYZ|Y SE Ydns sso| Alowaw e yum paedwi AjaAIHUS0D Jawnsuo) (Suspuem
~J9GUISW JJB1S B AQ USALIP SI 9[21YSA 331 {JUIPIDIE JBJNDIYSA B Ul PIAJOAUL S| ISWINSUOD JUSPRIY JEINIYIA
‘saijod/sa|na weadoud ay3 Jsulede

aJe 1ey} saouRISqNS [eSa| paziioyineun guisn 0} SHWPE JO punoy S| J3WNSUC) :3dueIsqns |eSa7 pazioyineun jo asn
*JOIARYD( §,43WNSUO0I B 3FeUBW 03 SUOISN[I3S $3Zi|1in AJuade Uy :UOISN|IAS JO 3sN

*JOIABYD( §,J3WNSU0D & 95eUBW 0] SJUlRJ1S3I $3Z|[13n Adudde Uy :sjuledisay Jo asn

‘saouelsqns [283]1 Suisn 01 SHWpE 10 Suisn 8 0} PUNO} S| JDWNSUO) :3dueIsqns [e33))| J0 asn

‘uodeam e sasn Jawnsuo?) :uodeapn e Jo asn

‘saidijod/sajns wesdoud jsujede

SI yoIym adueisqns |eda| pazIoyIneun ue Jo uoissassod sey Oym Jawnsuo) :dduesqns |eSa1 JO UOISSasSSOd paziioyineun
*Aj|B21U0J3103|D paulelulew /palwsuel)

SEM 121 UOIJEWLIOUI [BIIUSPIUOD S,J2WNSUOD e paengajes 0} Aouade ue Jo ain|ie] :saydealq ASojouydal,

“3J1] $,3U0 pu? 0} uolde/1dwalle |NyssaddNsUN uy 3dwany ApPINS

"(*210 ‘s8ojq

'S3ISGIM ‘U|PINUIT “JSTHM] Y00qade4) BIPAW [BI20S UO UOIBWIO4UL JBWNSU0D dlendoiddeul 8uiso|asiq :e1palAl |eros,
"9JUD|OIA [BNXIS JO WO} Y "U0sJad e Jo Juiyonol |[enxas |ensuasuod

-uou 10 ‘||im 11ay3 JsuteSe agesua 01 paduo) AjjeaisAyd 1o padis0d st uosiad e YIIym Ul 108 [eNXIS :Ynessy |enxas
‘sapijod/sajns wessoud sarejoin Jo/pue Aladoud Auage uo uodeam e 595595s0d Jawnsuo) :uodeapn JO UOISSasS0d
*30Ue1SONS [eS3)|1 UE JO UOISSASSOd SeY OYM J3WNSUO) :dduUeIsqns |eS3)|| JO UOISSASSOd

‘Anadoud

Aoisap Jo uosiad Jayjoue ainful 0} UOIIUDIUI BY} YHM 8240y |edisAyd Jo asn/aoud|oln |edisAyd :uoissa198y |ea1sAyd
“p|Iy2 Jo Ynpe 3|geiauinA e Joj apiroad 03 aunjiey jyeis/Aduady :303[8aN

‘2412 Jo poyiaw aendoidde ue sa1ndexe Apadoidwi

10 a.ed jo poylaw djendosddeur ue sasooyd J3PIA0I 31IY}EIY B UBYM JOLIS UBINY IO [BIIPIIA :SI0147 UOKIEIIP3NI

SWILSAS A NOGIDIY

r&

'TE
0¢

'6¢

LC

9¢

T4

e

R4
44

T¢

0¢

‘61

81

LT

‘qT



_20_

S
-anoge papodal elep ay3 ul sJ2WNSUod s1e01dnp 89 ABW BJ3Y L "J9WNSUOI Ag J0U pue Ju3pIdUl Aq si payodai e1ep ayl-
TCTC M EC-CCAIM
&
&
&~ 9&%
N 2% o &
& < i © S
fv‘m..r/ nvﬁu\u .manww > Jv.um. & ﬁﬂk Oﬂv 4
/40 @nnf/ & ; QU /u_O 5 99? \w/zo /...& Ow.v %/. @a%. Qn%/ rvO\u
2% a&e. 5 o’ z,“.v.a 5 O b 5 & S ﬂ@oo & 0 ovov AV &
S S S S N e FNS 3 SIS - P & &S
L Lo e ¥EFFPFH L&Y & & e & & @ X LS &S e
NV E G IS e W N & PP R PR DR P F P
Y & PP B L S R I Sl N O g7 F LS PSP L
K F N FF D NP E F P 2 o P o P & e 2 O o & E OE
\) R o W= & 2 &y & 5 ) N g & L 2 2 o &
~ .wve aao R ooo S sao xs? Jw,w & ¢ %o & b&f S aoo ..oo «9@. @z o% P ooo & ,.oo, &N «s@ ,%1 ,wov
= ] ~ = a = - - s - _ - -~ 0
N iz [t - _N — ..m m @ H fi= ww.n N m ﬁa N
L oy, QH £ .ﬁN
9¢ . 0s
8y 35 534 4 IS
) _ 8L
68 L8 L8 oot
0st
EST
vil (441
00¢

/0
0S¢

27-1C A4 03 paaedwo) €2-7T Ad
103 A10893e) 43d UoIZaYy 3y} 10} SIUBPIDU] [BIIID {BI0L

SWILSAS A NOIDIM

S



_21_

81 k4 T T € 7 L sayoeaug ABojouydal
v T T [4 EIPBIN [eId0S
9 T F4 I4 T SUONDY |e597] jega
949 €91 144 1448 €8 1L 174 |e10l yjjeaH
Lt L € £ S 14 S JUBPIDIY JBINJIYSA
e (514 [49) 8 85 SS 9 Jawnsuo) o1 Aunluj
[44 91 € T 4 0 }0J1U0D) UOIIBJU|
79z I8 88 €5 8T 3 €T 9seas1( 9jgediunuiwo)
€T 4 4 € T L 9 S1UBpIODY SnopJiezeyolg ETE
695 68 1L 14 Tt 6¢T 1 Y4} 12301 juswiedl] Juilxl
L 4 1 € T Julspue
99 L8 1L 174 80T 8¢T g€cl Juawado|3 quswiead| Suiix3
we 29 65 (44 9€ LT 14 |e10) apIns/yieaq
60T 9€ 8¢ ST [4" S €l 1dwany spIng
14" 4 4 € € [4 4 uoniejdwo) apIding Ag yieag
14 € T aplwoH Ag yiead
1433 T¢ 6¢ €C T¢ 0T 0t 19Y10 - Yleaq apIns/yieaq
9991 6TE 1S€E 8vZ 80¢ SLe <s9¢ |ejoL uoisses33y /asnqy
€ T T T uodeapn e JO 35
144 9 9 € T S 14 }nessy |enxss
LT 6 [ T < € 9 uodeajn JO UOISSISSOd
6v0T °UT LTT 89T ¥ST 59T €97 uoIssai98y [edIsAYd
8 T L BLETECTN
4 4 Jawinsuo) 01 JJe1s - asnqy
66¢C 8L ss (47 14 1174 <SS }JB1S 0} Jawnsuo) - asnqy

¥sT 15 8g €€ 9z 6V L€ J3WINSUOY) 01 JAWNSUOD - 3SNAY uolssaid8vy/asnqy

Jeap jeasi4 Ag adAL juapidui jo utewoq Aq Juapuj

SW3ILSAS A NOIDIY

o



._22_

apioins pa3s|dwod juedidilied auo JaAaMoY
0 £7-77 A4 Ul UlBWO( 3PIDINS/Y1eaq dy3 Ul 9SeaJ9p B udsq sey aidyl o

0 £2-7¢ A4 Ul paseauoul sjuswadojy o

juawieas] Suxy e

‘TO ul 249m A3y} 18YM 7 uey}l ss9| aJe D ul sidwiayie dprINS - O

appIns/ylesq e

1USWOW 3y} Ul SUD{EW-UOISIIAP Ul 24nd3s pue pasedaid aiow ul|a9) 4Jels ul

pa1ynsas aAey Sujules) (1S 190 PUB UOUBAIRIUL UoRRUBARA SISLD QuaWAoldws O sAep 06 UIYHM S||13S UOIle|RdSS-3p uo Bululedf O

pajesadledu Ajpuanbasqgns sem juedidiied ayy pue juawasdes8us aotjod pasinbai uapuUldUQ  ©
€D 01 paJedwod D €7-7Z Ad 410§ SIUBPIDUL UOISSDIZBY/asNqy Ul aseadoul ue sem aldyl o

uolssau88y/asnqy e

:sda3s uoioe Juawanoidwi Ayjenb payiodas sapinoid pue suoleAIsqO

6sbL T16€T 86€1 SOET [4:14} 2801 166 |elol
9/€Z 68E (1154 €25 9zs €CE 681 {B301 pa3ejay adueisqns
9 w1 €Tt v6 0T 69 S6 2oueISqNs [e8a7 paziioyineun Jo asn
S8T 8% 1T €€ €€ T4 Y4 aoueysgns [e33)(| 40 asN
509 8S LS S8T 44 9¥ 13 douelsqgns [eda7 JO UOISSasSOd paziioyneun
9y 9 S 1T L 1T 9 20URISNS |eS3||} JO UOISSDSSOd
€08 68 LT 81 €Vl 9GT 91 puno4 3sueisqns jesea
06 12" LT 8T A 91T 8 puno4 aoueisqns egs|| paie|ay duelsgns
8rTT vIe vze 991 69T 06T q81 |e101 suoisnjaas/siuiesisay
L2TT vTe |44 91 9971 L8T SLT uoISN|29s Jo asn
TC 0 € [4 € € (0] SJUleJ1S9Y JO 9SN SUOISN|I3S/S1ulelISaY
SSL €ST 911 bET €ST 69 0€T |E3O] 10143 UOIEJIPAN
SSL €ST 9T1 YET €51 69 0€T $40.443 uoiedipay $10413 UOEeJIPIA
8¢ (4 [4 [4 9 8 8 {e1o0] |eda7

SWILSASA NOIDIY



_23_

siseq AlJa1ienb e uo sjuald 3Y1 YUM ¥j|e3 0] B)SRIQSN 9344 030eGOL 31IAUL O} sued Japinoad suQ
(11dy Ul JUSWUOIIAUD 531J-2OWS & 0} paAow Ajjioe) auQ
Supjows punoJe 21n}ynd ay) adueyd o3 ueid e Jay1ado) Suimnd aJe Ajj1oe) suo 1e Jels [ediuld
‘pa8eIn0dud U sey sdnoJ3 uonessad sunjows ul uolniedioilied dnouo

Anjioey auo 1ses| 1e Aq d13aw Siy} ul papnjoul jje aJe sia8.eyo aden ‘soden ‘s1a1yd =

O O O O

sJaquINU J13Y3} Ul 95eaJ0Ul Ue 0} peaj A)jjide) SUO 1e pueqesiuod INo Jes|d 0} sAep Ajsauwe 9|diNAl =
0 €2-7Z A4 10J SIUSPIdUI Pa1L|a] IDURLISYNS U) BSE3Udap e SeM 3J3Yl  ©
paie|ay Ioueisqns
A1} nesse
PUE SUOI1EJIPAW JJO SJ9M JO ‘DIUIN|Juf BY} JIPUN UM ‘DJED JO [9A3] 19ys1y Joy Supiem syuediipyed wouy aem saposida ajdnn- ©
*Z0 pue TD woJy paddoup sey pue O 0} €D WOIY B|(EIS PIUIEWSI SUOISN|ISS 10 SUleNSaI Jo 3sn O
SUOISN|I3S/S1uUlel1SaY
aNnss! Ue Uag Sey JaAouun] weal SuisinN o
$J0JJD UOI1RJIPAW MIIABI 01 SDPIR Pawl YUM J2W JJels [BJIpaAf O
ssopino.d |esanas Ag pauueld si 10 paJ3jJo SEM J3YSaI4aJ UOIIEDIPIIN B pue Suluiesy apiy PN ©
“IZ-0C Ad Pue 2Z-TT Ad 01 paiedwod £Z-7Z A4 10} PISEIOUI DI SI0.I3 P3N
40 Ul Pasealaul pue ‘cDETAS Ul paseatdap ‘ZDETAL 104 PAsEaIdUl “TDETAS 40} PISe3II3P S10449 UONBIIPIN - ©
S10443 UOIILDIPAN
€7-77 A PUB ZZ-TT Ad ‘TT-07 Ad ‘s4eah |easij 924y3 1sed ay} 40} JuUI1SISUOI Paulewal saeY Suapidul [eSaq o
|ega]
TO Ul T 01 paJedwod D Ul 3sed T 03 UMOP SSUI1SS [BIIUBPISDI Ul 3SESSIP 9|EIIUNUWWOD Ul 3SBIJI3P paNnuiuo) O

yiesH

SWILSAS A NOIDIY

L]



{7 2

REGION VSYSTEMS

Region V Systems Provider Quality File Review Aggregate Report for
FY23 Q3
Network Measure Category: Efficiency

Quality File Review

In efforts to improve quality standards and maintain CARF accreditation for the Provider Network, each
agency submits their internal quality file review, observations, and improvement efforts. Providers
conduct these file reviews as part of their own internal quality process as required by their chosen

accreditation body (e.g., CARF, Joint Commission)
Providers note the number of complete files and items that they assess in their file review (e.g.,

consent signed). All items are labeled as one of the four categories:

1. Quality of Services (e.g., consents signed, financial eligibility documents completed),
2. Appropriateness of Services (e.g., thorough assessment completed, goals selected by

consumer)
3. Patterns of Service Utilization (e.g., discharge summary, referral to another agency)
4. Timeliness of Documentation (e.g., documentation completed within 10 days of session)

Based on these designations, an aggregate was compiled for each category. Below are the aggregate
results for Provider Network's file review.



()-s -25-
?“;-:-.. y

REGION V SYSTEMS

Quality File Review Category Averages for Open and Closed Records in FY 22-23Q3
Compared to FY21-22 and FY20-21

Target: 100%
009

0

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

95.29 .
a3 050 oo 01.0% % 93.9% 94.4% 93.5% 92.8% 93.0% 92.2%
88.4% s 89.2% . 88.7%

83.6% 85.2%

Threshold 80%

Appropriateness of Patterns of Service Quality of Services Timeliness of Total
Services Utilization Documentation

B FY20-21 FY21-22 % FY22-23

et AT | St pns s ot
Apprﬁpﬁatgﬁ_ess of Sew‘ices- [ 3,546 3,896 91.0%
-Par_tt;.'rﬁ;;f Servlce Utmzatnon _ 1,462 1,555 94.0%
Qt;;;iyquer;ri';:es' % 2,582 2,722 94.9%
Gra.nd.'_l‘o.ta! '—. | 8,229 8,865 92.8%



b, ! *

REGION V SYSTEMS

Aggregate Regional Quality Improvement Action Plans Efforts as Reported by Providers:
Trainings/Staff Education:

e

Staff will be educated in treatment plan review documentation.

Individual coaching of staff on items like filling in fields in client’s Profile page as well as
Medication tab.

Changing of staff in programs helped improve scores from last quarter.

Clinicians will be reminded to update and fix files after an audit occurs. An expectation of a two-
week turnaround is given to hold clinicians accountable.

When forms like Releases of Information and Trauma history are optional, and the client
declines, staff will be advised to remove the form from the file to avoid confusion.

Staff training by veteran staff members on Voter Registration and Citizenship Attestation will be
done to ensure a higher completion rate.

Processes Changes and Problem Solving:

Clinical Supervisors are made aware of issues per individual clinicians on their teams, so issues
of concern can be individually addressed.

Ensuring adequate staffing when members are out on sick leave, maternity leave, etc. to ensure
file quality remains high.

Following up weekly on any missing items or audits.

Continue to Monitor:

Clinical supervisors are to continue to review files with clinicians and monitor trends.

Clinician signatures.

General summary concerns of audits are shared across program staff and procedural
expectations continue to be reminded/reviewed.

New Master Treatment Plan review ‘signature requirements’ will continue to be monitored for
improvement.

Treatment Plan review signature requirements.

_26_



_27_

‘|_IUDP UOISSIWPE Ul 3|NS3J S1010e)
19410 INQ “BLIA1IID [BIIUL[D 193W PALIDJDI SU0SISd BSBY L SIS 44elS O S133d YM SIDI|JU0D ‘SBSUDYO [BNXIS Suipnjpur Aoisiy |e83) ‘suaad
10 JJe1s 1suieSe uoissa83e Juadal uo paseq aq Aew s|elua( "ewdId AJeuoisn|oxe paysiigelss Aoua8e jo asnedaq |e4i940J B 9AISS 10U 0) SUIUD3IOS
1e Aouage Japinoad syl Aq apew suoisidap aJe sjeluag "suoseas 3uipuny o 4apuad ‘a8e 03 snp Ayifenb jou op Asyi 4 4o paisanbal 321AI9S

JO |9A3] 31 40} BLISILID |BIIUI 3Y) 193U 10U Op A3yl J1 BuluaaJds e Japinoid 9yl Ag UOISSILIPE 3DIAI3S 104 91qiSi1aul pawaap S 3P Y

"€202 ‘0€ aunr

— 220z Ainr wouy paniwiqgns elep sapnpul J0dal siyl ‘€0 LT-9TA4 IdUIS suoissiwqgns 189yspeauds Suipiodad 1sijiem/Anoeded syl ysnoaya Apjaam

palUSWINIOP US3q aARY SAIM|IQISIaUl pue S|eluap 1o} Suiiodas 3y S3J1AISS 104 3|q18][3Ul SI9WNSU0D Buipuly Jo BuiAuap 1oyus 104 suoseal J1ay}
JusWnoOop siapiroad ey palsanbal swalsAS A UOISaY ‘UOIIEHPAIIIE YIOMIDN JHVD UlBUIRW puE Spiepuels Anjenb aaouadwi 03 s140448 U|

0 €7-77 A4 40} s|eIUBQ pUR S3)|qISI|aU|

SWILSAS A NOIDIY

¥



~28-

ans
- Juawadeuelp
ans [EMBIPYIAN
- uonedyIxolag HW - J3ulied HIA - ans ans - sxdsay ans - [erusplssy Pa10)UON ans - |elauspissy
|e120S uolsianlq (endsoH |euo1553404d |EIIUSPISAY D4NJaS - @SNOH Aemy|eH yljeaH |eiusin wiis) HoysS AjjesipaN JapJosia |eng
_— e o
8
€l
0t
gt 8T
0€
ov
0§
09
0L
08
06
00T

€C-CC A4 10} 33IAJISS Jad mw_ﬁ:m__wc_ JO IsQUWINN

s9|qI31jaul

SWILSAS A NOLD3IY

Ao



m29-

1UR1ISISIad 3 2J9AIS 4O 0B| 01 ANp |[e ‘s3|qIBIIaut (9Z JO 9T) %Y E "suoseal 3|q1Sijaul }sow ay3 Joj pajuUNodde aNSs —

%001

%T

%vT

%ET

%TC

%b

%1

%S

%0E

Juad1ad
|ejol

9L

81

0T

91

€C

|elol
puein

z [4 13 v
[4 €
[4 v
3sNoOH ans-u ans HIN
AemjjeH onedxoIaa - aydsoy - Juswealt
|eos YyieaH Aunwwo)
jeauan aM1IBSSY

(9¢ Jo 8T) s@|1q181]3Ul JO %irZ 104 PIUNOIIE B|gEISUN Aj|eoipaN e
(IINdS) SSaul|l |eIUBIN

v 8
1
T
4 S
T
4
HWN uolsi1onlq
- |lenuapisay {eydsoH
84n23s

T

ans
- |eRuap|saY
WIa) JoYS

6T

L1

ans -3
uawpeSeue
|lemelpyim

palojyuoy
Ajjleaipaiy

9z

[44

ans
- {enuap|say
Japiosiq
fena

yO 10} 2dA] 321135 Aq S3JIALDS 104 3|qI81|dU] 3 0} PUNOS 943\ SIBWNSUO) sUOSedy

SWILSAS A NOIDIY

i

{BlIUBpISAY JapJosig |end e

:SUOI1BAISSCO YO

|ejol puelp

Suipung

A uoiSay-uonN Agq patiasey
?|qesun Ajjedipan
9|geisun/padeuew

10U ‘HIA 9MSUBIXT
((Apoads

9sea|d) elajid uolssiwpe
J9Y30 199W },usaoq
(Apoads

asea|d) el91142 |BIIUID
J3Y10 193W },usaoq

asn

10 Asuanbauy 198w 3,uss0Qq

BLIB14D 35N
15B| JO 31Ep JoaW 1,us=0q
$3101J5p feuopIuny
pasnbal aney 1,use0q
Anpqi3ijau) Joj uoseay



<30-

S193d eis yeis aJe)
03} uQIssaJB8y  Yum 1sau1ul 03 uoissal83y 152491u) uolissa438y SS9|OWOH JO |9A97 42410 {{Ayloads
U329y JO 12IJU0D  JBPUBHQ |BNX3S UOIFaY 40 INO U229y }0 121)ju0) A103s1H |eSe U909y S| J3WNsSUO)  puswwoday  3ses|d) 1Yo
0
="
; ; R e
& S
S / 0T
et 12!
0¢
(013
o
LY 0s
09
oL
08
06
001
€7-7C A4 10} 3D1IAISG Jad sjeluaq 4o Jaquini
s|eluag

SWILSAS A NOIDI

o



wr3l-

soAed Asewnad se 21ed1paIA pue ‘Jjel1S yum

191JU0D ‘159.31U] JO 1IPUO0D BUISQ SUOSESU BUlUIeWRI YUM (£€ Jo 1no og) sanssi Ayoeded 01 aNp 3J9M SUOSED) JAAjoads aseald) 18Y10,, 1B JO %T8  *
(%E€ ‘610 €) Heis ol uolssa183e JuaaJ pue ‘(%95 ‘6 40 §) Apoeded |jny SEM JOWNSUOD S| S3JIAIBS JOJ PILUSP UOSEL UOWWOD 1SON ©

%001
%
%L

%1
%Y
%1§
%1
%0€

%1

FUCLIEY]
|eloL

1L T
€
S
T
€
9¢ 1
T
174
1
|elolL HW -
puesg  AdesayioydAsd
juanedinQ

HIA -3
uswAojdwy
payoddns

S|eluap 4o (TZ 40 6) %ET POIUNOIIL SAIAIDS ANS - a1dsay Yy eoH [eIUBIA e
(T4 40 8€) S|BIUAP JO %} 104 PAIUNOIIE UOISIDAI] [eydsoH e

:SUOI1BAIRSO YO

L 6 113 |e3ol pueln

248D JO |39
£ J3Y10 pPUSWIWIO3Y

Hes ol
uo1ssa188y Jus39y

s198d 0}
uo|ssa483y U39y

T z uo|8ay Jo 10
(AJoads
aseald) J8Y10
T AJojsiH 12891
SSO|9WOH
S| JAWNSU0)
1 HEIS YUm
152.491U1 0 PIJU0D
ans - ans - ans - HIN - HW - ans - ans- uoisizAlg uoseay |elueg
uojecyIxoleq  [BUDPISSY  [BAUDPISAY  [enuUSpPISAY  awdsay wawadeuey o)dsay jendsoH
|e1dos 19pJosia waay 2Jn2as  yjesaH |emelpyliMA  YyiedH
leng Hoys |eJUdA palojiuoiN |eJu3N
Ajjeaipay

T¢

O Joy adA] 921A135 Aq SIDIAISS JO [EIUAQ 40 SUOSEDY
SWILSAS A NOIDIN

A,

J



_32_

REGION V SYSTEMS

Region V Systems National Outcome Measures (NOMS)
Comparison of Consumer’s Admission and Discharge Statuses
Fy 22-23 Q14

Observations

Housing/Living Arrangement

There has been an increase over the last 3 years on the proportion of persons in stable living at discharge (currently 30%
vs. 89%, 86%, 83%). Community Rehab (18%) and Emergency services (22%) have the largest proportion of persons
served without stable housing at discharge. Region V has a higher rate of stable housing than both the State of Nebraska
(82%) and the U.S. (86%).

Employment
Of those persons in the labor force at discharge, 77% were employed. The proportion of persons employed at discharge

in the Region V Network is higher than the Nebraska (62%) and U.S. (48%) figures.
Criminal Justice Involvement
The vast majority of persons served (97%) had no arrests in the last 30 days before enroliment or in the last 30 days

before discharge (positive same).

Alcohol Abstinence
Of those listing alcohol as a substance used at admission, 63% of persons served were abstinent at discharge.

Drug Abstinence
Of those listing one or more drugs used at admission, 59% of persons served were abstinent at discharge.

Source: H4T Compass--ran 7/27/2023



_33_

¥-T0
g€t [44a 4 T2-0¢ 0c¢-61
+SN +21€1S SAY SAH SAY SAY
|
|
’ i
-
B
%87 | i
%9 f i %19 %19

%L
%LL

(82104 Jogeq u1 %) paio|dw3

¥-10
€¢-C¢C -1 T1¢2-0C 0c¢-61
+' SN x 91815 SAY SAY SAY SAY
Wl
]
o
)
—_
%28 - %
. %06 %68 %98 &=

Suisnoy 3jqers

%0

%01
%0¢C
%0€
%0v
%05
%09
%0L
%08
%06

%0
%01
%0¢
%0¢
%0v
%0S
%09
%0L
%08
%06
%00T

%001

*30IAU3S |ENP 40 YI[R3Y [BIUDW B Ul PANIIS S|ENPIAIpUl uo pariodal e)selqaN ‘TZOZ Ad 104
aJe saindy ‘§'M pue exseiqa (5311092180 SUIES AAINSO4 PuUE panoidui] PaUIGUIoI=A UOIFaY

Sunjeas/yo
piej-paAojdwaun
=3AILYOIN

juawAodwa
paulejuiew 10
pauied =3AILISOd

juawAojdwy

Suisnoy
pauieiulew 1o
pauied =3AILISOd =

%0T

SuisnoH sjqers

A uoi3ay t-10 £Z-2C Ad



_34_

¥-10
YINoA YNPY YINOA YNPY €7-7¢ Tele 1Z-0C 0761
SN 'S’ 9lels  91elS  SAY SAY SAY SAY

— — . . - [ BN %0
%L'0 9 g ; 0%l
o %L %E°9 %6 %0'€ %S°'€ %L'E %01
%0C shep 0€
1se] Ul (s)3sase ajow
%0€ 10 3u0 =3AILYOIN
%0t
%05 sAep o€ 1se} ul
sisasie ou
o 1 =3AILISOd = o
%0L vy
221sSNf eUIWD  %g

%08
%06
%00T

$19BIU0D) 321ISN[ [BUIWLID

“a31A49S |ENP 40 Y3jeay [EJUaU B Ul PIAISS S[ENPIAIPUL UO PRJIOUBI eYseIqaN ‘TZOZ Ad 10}

aie s3indy 'S’ pUe exseIqaN ‘Sa140891eD SWES AARISOd PUe Panoidui] pAUIGUIoI=A Uoi3ay, A uoi3ay p-TD €2-2Z Ad

SWILSAS A NOIDTY

SoF



_35_

"papN[aUl OS[e 2J9M SIIAIIS Y1|ESH [EIUSIN ‘syeah Joud u| *aJnseaw
S1Y} Ul PAPN|2UL 2J€ SIFPIOSIQ IS IUEISNS JO SIS Auo ‘zz-TZ A4 Ul Suiuuidag,

¥-TO

€t xCC1¢C 1¢-0¢ 0c¢-61 61-8T

SAY SAY SAY SAY SAY
%0
%01
%0¢

_ %0¢€ sAep 0f 1se|

%0Y uj 3asn 3nJp =3AILYDIN
%05 shep 0€ 15€| Ul

%ZS %09 asn Snip ou =3A1LISO4 =
%6S %65 %29

%59 %0L
%08
%06
%00T

asjuaunsqy 3nag

a3usUNsqy 3naa

‘papN|aul OS|B S43M SBD|AIDS Y1|eDH |EIUBIA ‘sieaA Jond U] *Binsesul
SIU} Ul PapN|IUl 31 SISPIOSIQ SN FIULISGNS O} SIVNAIDS AJUD ‘ZZ-TZ A4 W Buluuidag,

7-10
€Z-tt +«CTTC T¢-0C 07-6T1
SAY SAY SAY SAY
I %0
%01
%0T
o sAep Qg 1sej U asn
400 {oyo2je =3AILYOIN
%095
%05 %09 sAep Q€ 1SE| Ul 3sn
%£9 %09 ° %65 7, |oYo2je ou =3AILISOd =
%08
%06 2JUaUNSqY [OYOIY
%001

ajuaullsqy |oYod|y

3JULWLIOMA JIOMIBN SAY |enuuy b-TO €2-2Z M




In an effort to asse
Systems’ Provider Network asks the following questions on consumer surveys collected b

);1,

o
!

REGION V SYSTEMS

Perception of Care

Network Measure Category: Satisfaction
FY 22-23

of service and at discharge.

The Department of Health and Human Se
survey to solicit input from persons receiving mental health and/or substance use services on the qual

_36_

ss the consumer’s point of view as to the quality and effectiveness of services they received, Region V
y each agency at various points

rvices’ Division of Behavioral Health administers a behavioral health consumer
ity and impact of

services received. Survey areas include access, quality, outcomes, participation in treatment planning, general
satisfaction, functioning, and social connectedness.

The chart below illustrates an aggregate of consumer responses from all providers in the Region V Systems’ (RVS)

Provider Network as compared to the state and RVS’ performance on The Division of Behavioral Health’s Consumer
Survey, and national performance of all United States reporting to the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration {SAMHSA):

RVS’ State of Nebraska All States
Provider Network*  Consumer Survey  Reporting to
Perception of Care Adults SAMHSA
. Adults and Youth 2022 Adults
Survey Domain Statement FY 22-23 RVS NE 2021
| - :
fl h.ad other chqces, I would still get 92.0% 78.3%  80.8%
General services from this agency 39.0%
] . | ‘ e q U0
Satisfaction woulq recommend this agency to a friend 94.8% 80.8%  87.3%
or family member
Quality a‘nd Staff were sensitive tc_) my cultural 92.1% 87.7%  86.6% 29.8%
Appropriateness background (race, religion, language, etc.)
Access Zzgv;csr?r‘e;e available at times that were 91.6% 83.6%  88.3% 37.8%
Particioation i
ParticIpation ™ 1 not staff, decided by treatment goals 92.3% 813% 816%  863%
Outcomes | deal more effectively with daily problems 88.7% 76.4%  78.6% 77.1%
Yy
Social Ina cr15|s{ | woulfi have the support | need 88.2% 249%  77.1% N/A
Connectedness  from family or friends
Staff treated me with respect and dignity 95.4% 93.0% 92.0%
Other h - oo N/A
e program was sensitive to any 92.4% 86.9%  85.3%

experienced or witnessed trauma in my life

*percentages are for persons served in voluntary services.

Of persons served in involuntary/emergency services, 88% reported that staff treated them with respect and dignity and 68%
responded that the program was sensitive to any experienced or witnessed trauma in their life.



_37_

3] AW Ul BWNEI] PISSIUNM 10 PIDURLISAXS

Aue 01 aaIlIsuas sem weadoud sy Anugip 13 303dsau yum a pa1easl Jeis
%0
%01
%0
%09
%89 %08
%28 %001
ET-TLAIM CT-TZ MM 120 M
s@a1nlas Alelun|oAu|/sisiD-ale]) Jo uo1daniad
SS2UP3IBUUOD ue|d Juawiieal) ssaualeudoiddy
12430 |EIDOS S2WO02IN0 uy uoledidiiied $5920y 3 Aljenp UOIIDB4S1IES |eIBURD
S| A Ul ewinesy EELTWEDRT
pPOsSSaULM 'spualj Jo Apjwey ‘2w 10} punodyoeq Ajiwiey so puaty “Aduade siy3 woly
J0 pasuauadxa Anudip wouy pasu | ‘swajqo.d Ajlep  'sjecd uswiessl Poos M eyl jeanyjnd e 03 AouaBe s221n495 183 ||11S
Aue 01 anjyisuas 1y 19adsal yum ‘Loddns syl aney yum AlBAIIBYS Aw pappap  sawll je a|qejieAe Al 0} SAILISUSS  SIYl PUBWWIOIAL PINOM | ‘5321012
sem wegoad 9yl aw Paeal] JeIs PInom [ ‘sisd B Ul 210W |B3p | ‘HEIS 10U | 319M SIDIALBG 24aM JJel1s pINoOMm | 1ay30 pey | 4
_ %88 %68 _ _ _ — _
%6 %C6 %6 %6 %6
%56 %56
(9%58) PIoUsaayL « -+ ET-CT A4 W CT-TZ A mmmE 1707 A

$321A19S AJeIUn|OA - 8Je) Jo uondadiad

SWILSAS A NOIDIN

'

%05
%SS
%09
%59
%0L
%SL
%08
%58
%06
%56

%001



_38_

3UoN ©
:suonsanb SuUMo||0} 3Y1 40} %G8 JO PIOYSIY3 B4} MO|] SeM 30UBLLIOLIA YIOMIBN BY} ‘5)Nsa) paniodal JBpInoid 404

“aj1| Aw Ul ewnes} passaulm J0 padualiadxa Aue 0] SAILISUSS SEM welidoud ayy|
‘AluSIp pue J0adsat yHM aw paleall jje1s
‘s|eo8 juawiiessy Aw papioap ‘Jjels jou ‘|
"3W 40} pOOS 219M 1BY] SBWIL 1€ 3|qe(Iene I9M SIDIAIRS
‘punoJSjoeq [ednina AW 01 SAIUSUIS 249M Jjels
*19quiaw Ajlwey 4o puduy e 03 Aduage S1y} puawwodal pjnom |
‘Aouage S|y} wouy 21AISS 133 [|11S pInom | ‘sedloyd Jayio pey | §| O
:suol3sanb SUIMO||0) By} UO SAOGE 0 %06 1e W0iad 0] SINUITUOI Y4OMIBN dY1 ‘sHnsal patiodal Japino.d 104

O o0 0 o o0 oo

-swia1sAS A UOISSY 01 Ajjenuuelq s)NsaJ SASAINS UOHIRJSIIES UMO J19y) 1odal Os|e S19pInoid 1ey} suonsanb asoyl 01 d110ads

(91€1S % 76 SA SAY % v6) Anudip pue 10adsal YyIIm Sw pajealy jjeis =
(31835 % £/ SA SAY % 9/) SPUaLY pue Ajjuie} WoJy paau | Moddns 8y} aAeY pinom | ‘SiSLD B Uj =
(91238 % ¥9 SA SAY % £9) swiajgoid Ajlep yiim AjaA1N08)) alow [eap | =
(91815 % £8 SA SAY % 68) 5|20 Juswieds) Aw paplap ‘yJeisou ‘] a
(91815 % 58 SA SAYH % 88) W 10j pO0T 31aM Jey) SaWI] Je Bjqe|lene 3JdaM SIS »
(93835 % 76 SA SAY % T6) punoadyoeq [eannd Awl 0} DAIHSUDS SI9M JJBIS =
:yinoAio4 ©
(21238 % €58 SA SAY %6°98) 2J1] Aw U] ewines} Passaulm Jo padualiadxa Aue 03 3ARISUDS sem weiSoxdayl =
(91215 %26 SA SAY % €6) AluSip pue 1adsal Yyiim dw pajealy jjeis =
(21835 %T"LL SASAY % T'vL) SPUBL) J0 Ajlwiey wod) paau | Joddns 8y} 9AeY pInom | ‘sisude U] =
(21835 %9°8/ SA SAY %b'98) swd|qoad Ajiep yum Al2A[RI30 2I0w (e3P | =
(91815 9% 9'€8 SA SAY % €'18) 5|e08 uawieal; Aw papoap ‘4yeis1ou ‘| =
(918315 % £°88 SA SAY % 9°E8) SW 10} POOS 3U3M 1eY] SIWI] 1€ J|ge|IeAR DIAM SDIIAIDS =
(91215 % 9798 SA SAY % £°£8) punoidyoeq |ein}nd Aw 03 BARISUIS JIOM JJeI1S =
(23815 % £°L8 SA SAY % 8'68) 4aquiaw Ajjwey 1o pudlly e 0} Aoudde S|y} pusLILIOIBI PINOM | =
(91215 % 8°08 SA SAY % £°8/) AouaBe s1y1 Wwou) SAVIAIRS 123 |[13S P|NOM | ‘'SBII0YD JBYI0 PRy )| =
is}npe Jo4

‘MO39 P|Oq U 3Je SIUAWISILIS BSOY| 9joym e se alels ay) ueyl Ajpainisod
210w pajes “salaiul Jenaiued Jo 6 Yl JO ‘SIUBIBLELS |BISADS PEY IR 3DIAISS SWAISAS A UOIEaY Sy} Ul sjuapuodsal ‘Asang Jawinsuo) HAQ 720T Y3 Jod

suonensasqo



_39_

‘uonsanb siyy 01 sasuodsau sanolduwil ss3de Suidoy 81,9/ "udas syuswW.Zesip 9yl 40 %TT AJeau Joj pajunodde weisoid
1ey] ‘weiSoud Juswasdeuew uoljedipaw Ino ul sdoJp Jolew Ag pasned Ajliewiid auo Jayloue ‘ewines] 0 SAIISUSS SeM weudoud ay] :uonsanbayl £

‘uoisanb siy1 o1 syuswanosdul

295 01 2doy am sny3 pue ‘soaosdwl sas140 104 s1loddns |e|20s JO 3sh pue JO Uol3edIIUap! 3y} Suidoy 24,2Mm “JeaA siy] JailJea papiaodd Sululel] 3yl yum

pasied pue ‘uejd Alanodal 1no ojul ued Ajajes Y1 PIAOW BM 3JUIS (jesanau Buiag sasuodsal aAsod-uou Sululews) ay3) sasuodsal 0 %¢ Ajuo 1noge

a.e sasuodsal 2a.8esip AjSuolis/saalBesip 1ey3i usaI8 pue poddns spinold o3 Ajiwiey Jo spuaiy Aue Buiney aA12043ad 1,uop Aayl JI uoildo |eJINBU BY1123]9S
s|doad Auew jey) paljiiuapl Sey Oeqpasy se ‘||3m se 313y uondo y/N ue Suippe Suio|dxa aJ,am :spuatdy/Ajiwe) woly 1oddns ‘SIS e uj :uonsanbayy 9

*34£2 INO U1 3IyM YyImo.d J1ay3 9ziusodal sjenpiaipul djay o1 swei8o4d }s0W SSOJIE
Juswageuew AouaBuiuod se |{am se ‘1988141 03 SasuUodsal pue siolABY3q Ul sjuawanoiduwl 91e1g3j2 481139 0} SM3IA3J uejd A13a0231 Bulnp sassado.d
mau Sunuaswa(dwi uaag an,M sweldoid |eidAas SSOIDE J1aMO| 531005 Jey] U0 Ajiea1dAy st siyy :swiajgodd Ajiep yum AjaAizdag)e alow [eap | :uonsanbayl s

*19119q 10 %06 Sul102s jou sweidoud J3ylo
ul s1y3 ssalppe ||1m Sutuiesy sy [nyadoy 34,3 “s|eod/sue|d A1anod3s usALIp pue paJaued-uosiad Suileasd uo yess jje 01 Sulutesy pajepdn papiaoid am
“y8noy) ‘AD S1Y1 JaIjIe] 'S2100S MO| Pey JuaiuaBeue Uoned|paw 3sneasq AjRAISN|IX yonu Anaid 15208 1uawieal) Aw papidap ‘yels jou ‘[ uoisanbayl v

‘sasuodsal puelsiapun Ja11aq sn djay Aew Yaiym ‘punoJe SAIHSUSS 24 0}
Suipaau SuiyAue se 2unna, Jiay3 aA19243d 3, uop Asy) asnedsq Ajdwiis uonndo [euInau Byl 103|3S AuBW 1BY1 XIEQPIDY PIAIDIAL 3A, M s uondo ajgeoljddy
10N e Buippe Sulio|dxa 0s|e 31,9\ "$31005 MO| pey Juawageue|\ UOREIIPSIA 3Snedsq AjaA1sn|oxa 3s0W|e :punougyoeq |eJn3jnd 03 BAINISUIS :uolisanb ayl '€

-ASAINns ay1 232|dwod 01 s3ual(d a8einodus Ajjeuosiad siapiaotd
Suiney pue uollewone Sunesisanul 3pN|oUL 3S3Y] "SHOJD 3S3YE 3NUIIU0D |[IM 3/ "BJE S310I5 ||BISA0 s Japiacid 2y 48119q a4 pauInial sSASAINS
alow ay) 1ey} sieadde Ajjesauasd ) se ‘s1usljd Aq pa1a|dwod SASAINS UOIIDBISIIES JUSID JO 19qUINU 3y} osea.oul 04 sAem e Bupjoo| usaq Apealje aney jeis g

ésdiysuojapjas mau bupystjqpisa uj sauald buiioddns pup
(1uasuo3 s,3u3lf? Yum) Ajiupf abobua 01 pasn bujaq Aj3uaiind 1o SPoYIdW 1DYM 30 §0O] O ffo3s 1i0ddns Ayunwuio) Jof (piaifauaq aq 1 pINOM "Xa — S3J03S
anoldwi 0} shem aziFa1ea1s d|ay ued Aays os s10siAIadns [edlul]d YIm paseys Bulaq sisuolisanb ,2.e) O uonndantad, SAY Al 9yl JO elep sisAjeue |eulalul ‘T

‘SpJOM UMO S Japlinodd ay3 Ui 531005 a.eD Jo uondadiad anosduwil 01 uo Bupjiom aue siaplaoad jeyl sWa)l BWOos ale mojag

sueld uonoy Juswanoadwy Aljenp



3

-40-
REGION V SYSTEMS
Consumer Recovery Outcomes by Service & Service Grouping
Range: Threshold - Target FY 22-23Q1-4
Proportion showing Significant Improvement 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 20% 90% 100%
Professianal Partner (n=739) 5 . WSS
— 52%-71% 72%,57 19%,15  [9%7
g Recovery Support-MH [n=76} R —
é P 43%,33 29%,22 L. Pk S
Recovery Support -SUD (n=25) * .

o 0, £

2 SE g 40%,10 56%, 14 450

o

o Supported Employment - MH {n=9) ¥ .

2 65%-80% 44%,4 56%,5

=== 55%, 104 30%, 56 5 5 T
Outpatient Psychotherapy - MH (n=251) 1 o AR
= 20%-61% 53%, 132 36%, 90 C12%,29°

% Dutpatient Psychotherapy - SUD [n=61) * 48%. 29 34%, 21

h=3 ride= '3

= -

3 R

52%, 161 36%, 111 [13%;,40
== ntensive Outpatient/ Adult- SUB (n=8) B
5 g e 63%,5 25%,2 % A0
fesertive Community Treatment - MH (n=22) ¥
519743 48%, 11 35%,8
Community Support — MH {n=252) 1 5

2 A1966% 54%, 135 27%,67

é Day Rehabilitation — MK (n=41) & o

= 38%-56% 54%,22 37%, 15

= Intansive munity Services — MH [n=69) 1 L NSRS

,é_ intansive Comm szotﬁfeeé;/:)ces MH {n=69) 46%, 32 19%,13 T L 1

£ %-60° —

< Community Support —SUD (n=118) m—— —— —
Sin =" 49%, 58 26%,31 PLYSOLIES
Totai {n=503) 51%, 258 27%, 134 BN 715 § | B
Psychiatric Residential Rehabilitation - MH {n=20) T g T
60%-79% 40%, 8 35%,7 S5, TS
Secure Residential - MH (n=98) o 1%
26%-57% 77%,75 22%,22 1
Dual Disorder Residentiai - MH & SUD (n=56) ——cy -
43%-G5% 68%, 38 16%;9 IEEIEHONE
® Halfway House - SUD {n=101} £ 2 -

§ 579%-84% 76%,77 23%,23 1%, 1

7 intermediate I?esi/dent/ial - SUD (n=0) 33%,2 67%, 4

&z 159%-35%

Short Tarm Residential - SUD {n=547} 5%
12% - 76% 71%,387 24%, 134 S5
Therapeutic Community - SUD (n=29) 5 g e
S204-65% 55%, 16 24%,7 . 21%, S
= Emergency Community Support - MH n=158) 3 &

g 35%-57% 44%,70 32%,51

> risis Hoation fnei55 -

z Crisis sra::;:ﬁz_aarﬁ; {n=155) 33%,50 59%,91 9%,14.

> FIAEE

= Hospital Diversion -MH (n=72) E57T

< ospital ZELSI(ZG/ H (n=72) 42%,31 52%, 38 55

E = .L/D'_ _.-._.G_ e e i . :

5 39%,151 47%, 180 14%55
e £V 22.23 {n=2255) 57%, 1282 31%, 689 [13%,784°
u ©
A L=
§ > FY 21-22 (r=2146) 54%; 1154 35%, 746 11%,246

(=]

E
-4 FY 20-21 (n=2168) 52%,1121 37%,794 2%, 258
~Data not yet submitted
* i . .. B
hejpatiedimaceics Significant Improvement No Change Significant Decline

+ Comparison of Most Recent assessments included



_41_

"(960.) 5221A186 |BlJUSpISaY aJe juawanoidwi Jueaiusis Suiaatyoe suosiad Jo uoijiodosd 35938248 ay1 y1m s3uidnold adInes 3y e

'plOYS2IY] JaMO| paysi|qelss aA1122dsaU Y] 19W SIINIBS JO %98 @

(%S
:7ZA4) 1e9A 1se] wouy Ajaysis dn ‘9%/G SI EZ-TT Ad Ul Sjoym e se }IoMIaN 8y} 4o} Juswanoidwi ueayiudis Ajjeaiul]d Suiasiyoe suosiad jo uolpodoidayl e

:SuUoljeAlasqQO

. aulpaq
| uesudis

9dueyy oN

| yuawanosdwy
uespudis =

(89t2=u)
120z A

~ (9pTZ=u)
ZT-TZ M

$S9UDAI109447 :A10831e]) 2UNSEIA YIOMIIN
JUBWISSISSY 1UaJAY 1SOA/2848YdSIQ "SA UOISSIWIPY 18 SwoldwAS/3uiuonounyg Jawnsuo) Jo uosiedwo?)
$3W 021N AIBA0I3Y J13WNSU0D) SWIISAS A U0ISaY

SWALSAS ANOIDIY

L5



_42_

Oy

REGION V SYSTEMS

Stable Living and Employment Status for FY23 Q1-4 Discharges
Network Measure Category: Effectiveness

Proportion of Those in Stable Living at Discharge By Service*

FY 21-22 {n=5381) 88%
FY 20-21 (n=7232)

— = —Linear (State Target: 85%) 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
peer support- MH (n=14) 73
Peer Support - SUD (n=4)
N Professional Partner - MH (n=99) —IE
.g Recovery Support - MH (n=83) 87%
g Recovery Support - SUD (n=76) 86%
2 Supported Employment - MH (n=14) 100%
£ Supported Housing - MH (n=71) 83% A
= supported Housing - SUD (n=14) | 3
7 SOAR - SUD (n=14) 86%
Supported Employment - SUD (n=2) 100%
Total (n=391) 88%;
Medication Management - MH (n=355)
5 Outpatient Psychotherapy - MH (n=397) S v vl b s T S O
§ Qutpatient Psychotherapy - SUD (n=163) 96%
g Therapeutic Consultation - MH (n=1) 100%
Total (n=919) 97%
SEZE>E intensive Outpatient / Adult - SUD {n=72)
o Assertive Community Treatment - MH (n=8}
‘Oa:.» Community Support - MH (n=43) 88%
z Community Support - SUD (n=7) | N 7
: Day Rehabilitation - MH (n=3)
E Intensive Community Services - MH (n=57} ﬂ |
S Total {n=118) 83% I
24 Hour Crisis Line - MH {n=831) Ya%
Crisis Response - MH {n=159) 96%
Crisis Response - SUD (n=24) 100%.
3 Crisis Stabilization - MH (n=382) _ﬂ
é Crisis Stabilization - SUD {n=177) ﬂ [
e Emergency Community Support - MH (n=261) |
5 Hospital Diversion Less than 24 hours - MH (n=43)
%ﬂ Hospital Diversion Over 24 hours - MH (n=165) 98%
L.EJ Navigator - MH (n=") I
Social Detoxification - SUD (n=55) 87%
Medically Monitored Withdrawal Management - SUD (n=82) !
Total (n=2179) 0%
% Acute Inpatient Hospitalization - MH (n=1) 100%
] Inpatient Post Commitment Treatment Days - MH (n=1)
£ Total (n=2)
= Assessment - MH (n=382) 8956
£ Assessment - SUD (n=713) 75
3 Crisis Assessment - SUD (n=23)
2 Total (n=1118) 90%
o FY 22-23 Q1-4 (n=5540)
2
g

All Reg V

(-]
3]
l

*Residential services listed separately on page 4. AServices with no discharges, or discharges did not have a living arrangement listed.
Stable Living: All living arrangements except for Homeless and Homeless Shelter. Records with “Unknown” living arrangement status, or where the field was left
blank, were not included in measure.



_43_

Proportion of Those in Stable Living at Discharge by Service* and Agency

— — —Linear (Target: 85%) 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Lutheran Family Services {n=8) 100%

Peer Support - MH

CenterPointe (n=6}) 83% [
Peer Support - SUD Lutheran Family Services (n=4)
Professional Partner - MH Region 5 Systems (n=99)
TASC (n=66)

Recovery Support - MH
CenterPointe {n=17}

D
s Recovery Support - SUD |
S
& supported Mental Health Association (n=10) 100%
(%3]
Employment - MH Goodwill Industries of Greater Nebraska Inc {(n=4) 100%
Supported Goodwill Industries of Greater Nebraska Inc (n=1) 100%
Employment - SUD Mental Health Association (n=1} 100%
) |
HopeSpoke (n=11)
Medication Management - SUD CenterPointe (n=3)
Lutheran Family Services {n=50)
‘% Outpatient Blue Valley Behavioral Health (n=265)
O -
g Psychotherapy - MH HopeSpoke (n=20)

CenterPointe (n=62)

Blue Valley Behavioral Health (n=132)

HopeSpoke (n=10) 100%

Qutpatient

Psychotherapy - SUD CenterPointe (n=3) 33%

Lutheran Family Services (n=16) 94%

St. Monica's (n=2) 100%

AServices with no discharges, or discharges did not have a living arrangement listed.
Stable Living: All living arrangements except for Homeless and Homeless Shelter.

Page 2 of 6



_44_

Proportion of Those in Stable Living at Discharge by Service* and Agency

= = =Llinear (Target: 85%)

Assessment- SUD CenterPointe (n=39)

Lutheran Family Services (n=50)
Mental Health Crisis Center (n=55)
The Bridge Behavioral Health (n=3)

Crisis Assessment- SUD Mental Health Crisis Center (n=23)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

E « Blue Valley Behavioral Health (n=64)
g Lutheran Family Services (n=8) 100%
Assertive Comm. Tx.-MH CenterPointe (n=8)
- Blue Valley Behavioral Health (n=8)
§ Community Support - MH CenterPointe (n=20) m :
-‘g Lutheran Family Services (n=15)
§ Community Support - SUD CenterPointe (n=7) |
~ Day Rehabilitation- MH CenterPointe (n=3} 100%
Int. Community Services - MH TASC (n=57) ” :
24 Hour Crisis Line - MH CenterPointe (n=831) d
Crisis Response - MH TASC {n=159)
Crisis Response - SUD TASC (n=24)
'é Crisis Stabilization - MH Mental Health Crisis Center (n=377) m
53 Crisis Stabilization - SUD Mental Health Crisis Center (n=177) m i
i Emergency Community Support - MH TASC (n=261) :
jEj Hospita! Diversion <24 hrs.-MH  Mental Health Association (n=43) 100%
Hospital Diversion >24 hrs.- MH Mental Health Association (n=165) %
Med. Mon. Withdrawal-SUD The Bridge Behavioral Health (n=82) :
Social Detox. -SUD The Bridge Behavioral Health (n=55)
g ;_C: Inpt. Post Committment - MH Mental Health Crisis Center (n=1) 100%
Associates in Counseling & Treatment (n=2) 100%
Blue Valley Behavioral Health (n=207)
Assessment- MH CenterPointe (n=107) :
Lutheran Family Services (n=47)
QCEJ Associates in Counseling & Treatment (n=344) m
- Blue Valley Behavioral Health (n=222)
<

64%

23%

o
N
R

AServices with no discharges, or discharges did not have a living arrangement listed.
Stable Living: All living arrangements except for Homeless and Homeless Shelter.

Page 3 of 6



Proportion of Those in Stable Living at Discharge

Residential Service Grouping by Service and Agency

% % 20% 9 40% 0% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
= = = Linear (State Target: 65%) L 10k 05 et g

CenterPointe (n=18) 61% '

Dual
Disorder

Houses Of Hope (n=4) 100%

Halfway
House

.C. .2
2 3 -5:“; CenterPointe (n=2) 100%
gy =L
®
E Integrated Behavioral Health Services (n=11}
B
@
(2
.
N Telecare Corp (n=6)
&
£ - Monicals (n:33) —
g
(3]
=l
3
EE: The Brldge BEhaVioral Heaith (n215)
o
he
[
ﬁ fouctitone (n:60)
g 5
© % > St. Monica's (n=3) 100%
& 3
[ ()
TSy !
SEa = The Bridge Behavioral Health (n=3) 0% |
=T @ I
I
EE2q '
$Ta> The Bridge Behavioral Health {n=586) 58% 1
sz gd"” 1
I
I
» FY 22-23 Q1-4 (n=741) 63% W
£ .
b I
- I
= FY 21-22 (n=589) 64% I
i)
© |
@
oz
©
=} (]
c O ¥
R FY 22-23 Q1-4 w/o Respite (n=152) 86%
g~ &

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

AServices with no discharges, or discharges did not have a living arrangement listed.
Stable Living: All living arrangements except for Homeless and Homeless Shelter.

Page 4 of 6



Proportion of Those in Labor Market who are Employed at Discharge
By Service*

= = = Linear (State Target: 65%) 0 10%  20%  30% 40% 50%  60%  70%  80%

=

Peer Support - MH (n=7)
Peer Support - SUD (n=6)

Professional Partner - MH {n=22)

Recovery Support - MH (n=38)

_46_

90%  100%

100%

@
=
g Supported Housing - MH (n=22) ” |
Supported Employment - SUD (n=1) 0% :
roaovscs) |7

Medication Management - MH (n=279)
= Outpatient Psychotherapy - MH (n=249)
% Outpatient Psychotherapy - SUD (n=125) 5%
i
3 Medication Management - SUD (n=2) m :

Toatioesss) Y
é = Intensive Outpatient / Adult - SUD (n=66) 91%
§ = Total (n=66) 91%

5 Assertive Community Treatment - MH (n=1)
-‘g Community Support - SUD (n=7) —
% Intensive Community Services - MH (n=16)
“ Total {n=50)
9 Dual Disorder Residential (n=5) :
_'E Short Term Residential - SUD (n=26) :
g Therapeutic Community - SUD (n=1) 0% I
- Total (=36 l
= ey ——

0% 20% 40% 60% 80%

*Excludes Emergency/Crisis, Hospitalization, and Assessment Services
AServices with no discharges, or discharges were not in the labor force
In Labor Market: Active/Armed Forces, Employed (Part or Full Time), Unemployed- Laid Off/Looking

Page 5 of 6

100%



_47_

Proportion of Those in Labor Market who are Employed at Discharge
By Service and Agency

= = = Linear (State Target: 65%)
CenterPointe (n=4)
Peer Support - MH Lutheran Family Services (n=3)
Peer Support - SUD Lutheran Family Services (n=6)
Professional Partner - MH Region 5 Systems (n=22)

CenterPointe (n=7)

g Recovery Support - MH TASC (n=31)
% CenterPointe (n=18)
% Recovery Support - SUD TASC (n=30)
§ SOAR -SUD CenterPointe (n=4)
7 Goodwill Industries of Greater Nebraska Inc (n=2)
Supported Emp - MH  Mental Health Association (n=6)
Supported Emp - SUD Mental Health Association (n=1)
Supported Housing - MH Region 5 Systems (n=22)
Supported Housing - SUD Region 5 Systems (n=9)
Blue Valley Behavioral Health (n=94)
Medication CenterPointe (n=128)
Management - MH HopeSpoke (n=5)
Lutheran Family Services (n=52)
Medication Management - SUD enterPointe {n=2)
E I Blue Valley Behavioral Health (n=166)
g psychotherapy CenterPointe {(n=42)
a - MH HopeSpoke (n=8)
Lutheran Family Services (n=33)
Blue Valley Behavioral Health (n=107)
Outpatient CenterPointe (n=3)
FSS\{chotherapy Lutheran Family Services (n=13)
St. Monica's (n=2)
g & Intensive Blue Valley Behavioral Health (n=58)
§ E Outpatient - SUD Lutheran Family Services (n=8)
= Assertive Comm Services - MH CenterPointe (n=1)
-:;: Blue Valley Behavioral Health (n=4)
0; Community CenterPointe (n=14)
£ Support-MH
g Lutheran Family Services (n=8)
§ Community Support - SUD CenterPointe (n=7)
Int. Community Services - MH TASC (n=16)
2 Dual Disorder Res. - MH CenterPointe (n=5)
S Halfway House - SUD HOUSES OF HOPE (n=4)
5 St. Monica's (n=5)
= Short Term . . _
é Residential - SUD The Bridge Behavioral Health (n=11)
i Touchstone (n=10)
o

Therapeutic Community. - SUD St. Monica's (n=1)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% S0% 100%

25%
100%
100%

89%

|

75%

R T

0%

L
(=]
|I

100%

48%
100%

|

86%

&

87%

93%

[y
(=}
Q
R

|

20%

[y
e
53

60%

27%

I

0%

In Labor Market: Active/Armed Forces, Employed (Part or Fuli Time), Unemployed- Laid Off/Looking

Page 6 of 6



Region V Systems (RVS) Quarterly Report
July 2023 - September 2023
Chris Allende, CPSS, ALF

List of tasks ¢ leted/milesto it this quarter:

e Started planning a “rural” Behavioral Health Conference (BHC) in Otoe county.
e Supported the implementation of “Project Lincoln Connect”.
e Provided ongoing Support groups in a variety of settings

Assessment of Need/Problem Solving:

e Consumer Family Advisory Committee (CFAC): Continue to identify and outreach
consumers and family members to increase membership. Continue to plan a Behavioral
Health Conference (BHC) in a rural community. Continue to develop and distribute a
quarterly newsletter. Work with RVS Fiscal department to streamline the funding
application process.

e Rural Behavioral Health Conference (BHC): Identify a “rural” community willing to
host a BHC. Identify and outreach stakeholders in the identified community. Convene
stakeholders to plan and implement BHC.

e Project Connect Lincoln (PCL): Support the planning and implementation of Project
Connect Lincoln.

Projects:

e SMART Recovery group: Continued providing weekly SMART recovery groups.
Implemented a new group this quarter, for a total of 2 SMART meetings per week.

e CFAC: Continued to identify and outreach individuals and agencies that would be an
appropriate fit for CFAC membership. Developed and distributed CFAC quarterly
newsletter. Continued to work with RVS Regional Administrator, Fiscal department,
CFAC Bylaws committee and funding committee to streamline the funding application
process as well as the Bylaws, policies and procedures.

¢ Rural Behavioral Health Conference (BHC): Identified a rural county (Otoe) and
outreached stakeholders in said community. Convened a series of meetings with Otoe
county stakeholders to start the planning of our “Otoe county BHC”.

_48_



Data Collected/Analyzed:

Current:

# of Peer Support Training participants- 0

# of WRAP Facilitator participants- 0

# of support groups- 6

# of support group participants (duplicated)- 132
# of committee/workgroup meetings- 16
Accumulative:

# of Peer Support Training participants - 0

# of WRAP Facilitator participants- 0

# of support groups- 6

# of support group participants (duplicated)- 132

# of committee/workgroup meetings- 16

Tasks/goals next quarter:
Continue working on the following projects:

e Continue to offer peer support opportunities in rural communities
e Continue providing educational opportunities for peers and family members
e Continue advocacy efforts to reduce stigma

_49_



_50_

8ET68'095'S S | C9OISBLE VT $ |%T'TT  LLTSL'GLYT S |%TCT  LLTSLGLYT S | 00'60t'62H°0Z S _ 00'60v'6Z¥'0Z S | V.LOL
| _ [ { I -
|

9T'T96'88L'T S | ¥B'PIB'9ES'Y § |%0°TT PTWYTOS.  $ %0TT  pUWYT9SL  § __ 00'978'sTE'Y $ 00'928'5ZE9  § | . SIOINY3AS 3SN FONVLSENS
TTIE6'TIL'E  $ | SLTSOTHEOT § [%T2T  €9809°€TLT & %TTT  €9'809'€TLT $ _ 00'ERSEOTPT S | OO'ESS'EOT VT § SIADIAYAS HLTVIH TVYININ
pug JeaA pu3 Jeaj % 7 pled _ % paing | _ Peuo) ERILYELS
Sujuieway Suyg | _ _ joeJIUO0D :[7le}
poadalosd pealold . |"o%zot | | uewmy |
| 7 _ _ _ | vZ-€2Ad .
_ _ _ (SW3LI 3NIT IOIAETS T1V) SWILSAS A NOID3Y
1 | | | I
# . _ _ _ _

£207/T€/8 YsnoayL
YZ-£TAd
AYVININNS NOLLVZITILN 1DVYINOD




_51_

AYYINIANS NOLLYZITILN LOVHLNOD

[vE958'89T5) | VETOBCOE § |%LLE | 6899Y0SS |%LLE | 6899p70SS [00'GYEEETS | OO'SYEEETS | [v10L
T 1 _ ) 1 m
(80°S06'0L) | 8T'S06V8 § |%S'TYL | 880ST'VTS |%STvl | 88'0ST'YTS | 00°000°0T $ | 00'0000T §| S3d DAV dO-Qf 31vH-11NAY-AdYHYIHLOHOAS LNIILYLLNO - dNsS
{90°8TR'TTT)S | 90'8T8'TZT § [%0°€0Z | TO'E0E0CS |%0'€0T | TO'EOE'0LS | 000000t $ | 00'0000T $ | s34 |dor-ans | WILNIAISTY NON - L1NAY - LNIILYd1NO JAISNILNI - ANS
9PTOV'T  $ | PSEV'T6 $ |%Y'OT | 6S90V'ST $ |%r9T | 65°90V'STS | 00TP8'E6 $ | 00'TYB'E6 $| S44 |OTUSTH TvILNIQISTH NON - 1INAY - LNIWSSISSY - Ans
80VLT'8S | TE'ST8T § |%0E | ZEVOES %OE | TEWOES | 00°0000T$ | 00°000°0T $ | S33 1AV dO-H 1INav IN3ILY1NO - HA
ovi8T'8S | vSTIST $ %0 | 60°T0ES %0 | 60'Z0ES —oo.ooo.oa 0000007 $ | S44  NISSV-HY YILNIAISTH NON - LINAY - INFNSSIASSY - HA
00'%0TS B $ %00 | o000$ %00 | 000S | 0070T$ | 00WOT  $ | S4IN |OCE-Se SANN4 X374 ADNIDEIWT - HA
pu3 Jeaj pusesy | % pred | % paisanbay | wenuo adAL | #3199ys _ J9IAN3S
Suiuieway Suyng | | FEETH TS __ 810 adis | [ =
pepelold | pawslod X 7 juaun) ,
[ | [ vZ-€TAd
_ { .
_ _ 7 , “ | ININLIVIHEL 8 ONITASNNOD NI SILVIOOSSY
1 1 1 1 } i
I | | _ “
£z/1€/840 sV
YC-€CAd




_52_

AYVINIAINS NOILVZITILN LOVYLNOD

0E0LEWT ST0LTv9996 & |%96T | S6'¢98TST S |%U9T | S6'90T'T9TS | 00'ZI0I86  $ | 00'TLO'ISE  § | B

- ”. m __ ] v.LOL _
0000001 $1 - $ %00 0003 %00 | 0005 00'000'0T  $ | 000000  $| Sd44 _ 31vY-11NAY-AdVEIHLOHOAS INILLYHLINO - dNS
{oLg6v'T) $loreeo'zor § |weTt | seser’ses %8'9T | S6'C89'€E $ | 0000900z §| 00409007 $| Sd4 |vwv-OEH | 17Nav-S34 WY3L LHOHS - ans
ZOZSETL $|sezveTzr  § |%vOT | €3'ECZ0CS |wvor | eseze’oes | 00°'S69'E6T  $| 00'S69'E6L  $ | S3 | MIAW| TMVHAHLIM INJILVANI GIHOLINOW ATIVOIQ3N - aNs
00°000°0T s - $ [%00 00°0$ |%00 - $|000000T  §|000000T  §| Sd4 1SLINISY TvILN3AISTY NON - L1NAY - INFWSSISSY - NS
ZUELL’SS $|sgr0ee $|%e9 86'215'S$ %T9 | 86T15'SS 0070888 ¢ |00TOB'8E S| SH AONIOYINI-LTNAY-XOL3A WVID0S - ANS
(bTTSz'0TZ]  § | YTECTOTd ¢ |%v'St | 6TZ89T0T  § |%b'Sz | 6T/89TOT  $ | 00°ZL8'66E  § | 00T/B'6GE $ | SHIN |EEV-OEH AONIOYIWI-LINAY-ILISTH HLIV3H TWLININ - NS
ooovo'eL S| - $ |%00 - $lwoo | - $|ovovo'es  $|o00v0'EL  $| S |zev-oew | 17N@v - VILN3AIS3H ILYIGIWYILNI - aNS
00'000' s| - $ |%00 - $ [%00 - s |00000s  §| 000005 | S4IN |9EE-0e# SANN4 X314 AONIDYINI - HN

: s - S %00 3 S |%0°0 00'0% [~ $ - S| SIAN |TEE-O%H AONIDHINI-LTNAY-ILIASIH HLTVIH TYLNIN - HW
pugieap pug Jeap % pied % [ paisanbay | PeIu0) adA} | #199ys .m_o_>~_mw - .
Jujuieway Suig I [ | penuo) U0 [EETES N
paweloid paypafoid | %91 wauny | | |
_ .
_ ._ _ __ v2-EZAd .
._ _ H11v3H TVHOIAVYHIE 394149 3HL
it
€7/1€/8 HONOYUHL
ve-€CAd




_53_

_m - | | | | -
_. _“ | | _ “ | | |
8SOVT'Eby  $ | EYTLET8S § | %UW'TT | pLBLLEST S | %rTT _ vL'82L'EST $ | 006T9°0Ev'T $ | 00'6T90EV'T § _ _ _J_Kk‘o_. - eemaaw m;
ST'6LEET S| E86ZISy  $ | %01T | v9TESL s| %ot | p9TES’L $|00'60s'89  $ | 00'BOS'BY S _ Si4 | 9zy-sTH _ S34 NON - 11NAVY - INJILYLLNO JAISNILNI - ANS
00'602'62 S = S| %00 | - S| %00 . % 0060767  $|00'60C°6 S| S _ ver-STH | HLNOA - INIWSSISSY - ANS
¥9'S9v'8 $|oe9za'ta  § | %LwT | 90TLE'OT $ | %evt | s0tez'or $ |00z600  $ | 00T600L S| | s34 | czvsi# _ TYILNIQISTH NON - LINAY - INJNSSISSY - ANS
9ELOT'6T  § | vIVRE'SE  § | %G'ET | bYL66'ST $ | %6'ET | v 66'ST ¢ | oozsT'sTT  $ | 00°ZST'STT _ SHIN | vizv-sTH dX3-LINAY-AdVHIHLOHADSd LNAILYLLNO - ANS
TU6SL/97 S | 880PL'66  $ | %U'ET | 8Y'EC9OT § | %U'ET | 8y'ET9'or $ | 00'00g'ozt ¢ | 00'006'92T § | S4d | Tew-sTH | 31¥d-1TNAY-AdYHIHLOHOAS INIILVdLNO - ans
{sgrote ) §|ssvsov  $| %pLT | 86'45L9 s | %t | 86725 ¢ 00TEL'SE  $|00TELBE | S4dN ._<o~¢.m;_ | dX3I-NIHATHO-ADVHIHLOHOAS LNIILYLLNO - ANS
000756 S §| %00 = S| %00 7 $ | 000¥S'6 S | 00'0rS's S| sS4 7 0cv-ST# 1Y Y-NIHATIHO- >n_<mm_I._.OIO>wa ._.Zm__._.<n_.rDO ODw
08'L6E'C S| 02'209'C S| %8 | OLgEwS | %ee | oreers 00'000's $ | 0o'oo0's $ | S4dN | HLNOAWW TYILNIAISTH NON - HLNOA - _.zm§m0<z<_>_ a3an - HA
00'666vT S| - $| %00 | - $ 7 %00 | - $|o0666'vT | 00°666%T  § | SHN | L9ESTH | 17NAY-SANNA X374 - HAL
(09°'89v'e)  $ | 09°€86'CC  § | %9'6T | 09°0£8°E $ | w61 | 09°0€8'E $| 00STS'6T  $|00'SIS6T  $ | SHN | 99ESTH | 3S INIWIDVYNYIN NOILYIIATN - HA
85TIr'7Z9  § | Tv'0€9 $ | %ro | Losor $| %o | zosot $|oozvo'es  $|00ZRO'EY  §| S * zeest4 | 31vY - HLNOA - LNIWSSISSY - HN
¥8'E96'9 $ | arpasios  $| %9'€T | 95'L60°S $| woer | 9eL60's $|008vS'LE  §|008YSLE  $| S3d | TEESTH | ADNIOHINE - LINAY - INIT SISIHO ¥NOH ¥Z - HA
POBIEGT S| 9E'TZ6'8F S | %STT | 95ESTB $| %571 | 95°EST'S sl ooovz'ss ¢ 000vEss  § | S4d | seeste | TVILNIQISTY NON - 11Ny - ININIOVNYIN Q3N - HN
76759 | 80'6E9'8S  §| %L | BUELLS $| e _ 8T'€LL'6 $ 0076208 $|00T6C'08 S| S44 | szesm# | 17NAaY - L40ddNS ALINNWWOD - HA
90'pST'0S  § | veLE6'6T S| %Lv | 66°TTEES %LY | 66TTEE <l 00z60'0L  $|00T60'0L  $| SI4 | €TeST# | IVILN3QIS3H NON - LINayY - LNINSSISSY - HW
08'6ET'SC S | 0zV69TL S | %v'TT | 0L'STTTT $ | wvzt _E str'et S | oobeEs'z6 S| 00VES'E S| S4IN |vIzE-STH | dXI L 1NAY-AdYHIHLOHOAS INIILYLLINO - HA
89°'867°2. | tE'9E6'0EE S | wETT | TLTE89E s | %eTT | TLTTsoe $ | oosez’ssr $ | 00°SET'86C S | S4d | TCE-STH d V-1 INAY-AdYEIHLOHOASA INIILYALNO - HA
Y8E0E'E $|oT057'2.  $| %PTT | 9E'80TTS an _ 9E'80T'T $|o009s'0r  §|000950T  $| S44 | OeeSTH | NIYATIHD - HLNOA - INIWSSIASSY - HN
TE'€9L'9C S| BIBYEVET S| BLET | 8LYEEOL S | %LET i 8L'%78'0T $ | 00°ZTLTST $ | 00TILTST $ | S4dN | VGIE-STH# | dAXT-NIHATHD-ADYHIHLOHDASA LNIILYLLNO - I_>_
87709'6C  § | TLwITeT  $| %E® | TU'698Y $| %e€'g | TT6IBY $|00418'8S  $| 0041885  $| sS4 | eTESTH | 3LVY-NIHATIHOADYHIHLOHOAS LNIILYALNO - H
pu3 Jeaj | puziesp % pred % | pasanbay _ 19BJ3U0) adA]l | #3199Y4sS _ J9IAY3S
Sujujeway Suyna [ _ . JIRIJUOD '8up ERTSEN “
papalosd payalosd %L'9T _ waun)y 7
) “ _ _. | . " _ _“ VT-ETAd
L | | HLIV3H T¥0IAVHIE ATTIVA 3N
| | |
|
| | |
€2/1€/8 NYHL
VC¢-€CAd

AYVINIANNS NOLLVYZITILN LOVHLNOD




_54_

68'769'T89
00°000'5
(ve'ses)
00°056°CT
97’206
00°000°5
YTETYT
{o6'e29'E2)
70°'S90'T9T
vy IIR's9
(se'9v0'9)
07 TEE'YT
v8'660'ST
00'294'95T
00°656'87
00°000'
00°E69°ET
60'vLZ'0T
(8'699'e)
¥0'698'02
a0OpT'EST
00'STO'ST
U:m JBDA

Suineway
pataloid

0

v n

$

W | -
$ | aLLLYS
06'v9G'EE

w

ST IR

$ | og'gseTy
S

s looz1s18
w 1

WA UV AR R W W

| 00°BLT'TS

16'306'6¢

TT'8LL'8EL

vT'sLgot

VLTL6T

96'809°L
99°50T'¢S
88'560'99

91°28L0E

00'VSE'TS

88772018
96'969°€6
¥6'605'501

pu3 1eap

EMTE]
paizalosd

%L'8
%0°0
%181

%YET

PARY
%00
%S
%E'95
%80
%L

%E'8T

%¥'ZT
%TTT
%19

%00

%0°0
%11
%Yl

%00
%LLT

%SET

%89
%00
%

00ELLR

89'6CTECTS

52187
67'S6Y

96716
ST'P6S'S
ST'892'T
S7'v89's
86'SI0'TT
08'60T'L
980ET'S
00'252'ST
00'655'8
Bb'vEE'Y
8Y'0LT'0T
97'979'sT
66'VBS'LT

B T Y R Y A T N Y Y A AR R R i

pled

| | —
i | _ _

%L'8 69'67T'E2TS 7 00 TLP'0TY'T § | O0TLY'OLH'T § ‘ |

%00 | - $ | 000005 5 | 00'000°s L s |

%l'8T | pSTI8T s | ooooo'ot  $ | oooooot §| s# |wssvans
| %rer | 00ETLE ¢ | oostzss s loosrz'ss §| S4AN | eLb-GsH
| %rv | 6TSey m o0vb0ZT  § 00Wv07ZT  $ | sa _ S1y-SSH

%00 00°000°S S | 00°000'S m_ S44 _

%Sy | 96'2T6 $ _ 001600z $ | 0016007 $| S44 | Tiv-SS#
| wees |sTves's $ | 00TvE’s s | oo1vs's 5| S4N | TLv-ssh
| wgo | ovesrtT $|oopz9'89T  § | 0OML9'BIT  $| S99 | OLb-ss#

9wl | 989’8 $ . 00°LT64TT  $|00°LT6LIT  §| Sd3N Tm?mmu

%€8l | 86'STOTT s|ooevoos s |ooepone  $|  Sdd 8LE-54
A $ |oo0oszs  § | 0000s'es §| s 148554
| %z1T | 9c0Er's $|oogss'sy  $ ooEsssk S| S¥ 9LE-S5H

%l'9 | 00°Zsz'sT s |oovez'epr | oowitaez S| s Se-5SH

%00 | - $ | 00'65E'82 S | 00'656'8C 3| SHAN | £Le-sSH |

%00 | - s | oo000's s | 00'000°s s s

%Il | 00'655'8 s|ooewo'se ¢ |ooewo'se ¢ s4d | wee-ssh

%CT | BY°Y86'Y $ | ooT8T'OV $ | po'tet'or s Sd4 VLE-SSH

%00 - | - 5| - T 6SE-5GH

%L'LT | 8YOLTOT $ | oo'gse'Ls  § | ooEsErs $| sS4 85€-G5# |

%9'€T | 9T'919°ST S| ooeaswTr | 00'995'%TT | SHAN | 9SE-SSH |
| %89 | eevesLl $ | ooosc'sst ¢ |oooscBst §| S4AN | Sse-asH
| %00 '8.8 oo'sto’'st | 0o'sTo'ST  §| s yee-asH
_ o paisenbay _ PeUo) adAl | #199ys

|
I | pesuo) | ‘3u0 aninsas
| %ot _ weuny |
| _
| |
_ _

W10l

TvILNAAISTH NON - HLNOA - LNBWSS3SSY - ans
TVILNIAIS3Y NON - LINAY - LNGWSSISSY -ans
HY0S -dns
TVILNIAISTE NON - LNV - 1¥0ddNS ALINNWWNOO - ans
J1VH-HLNOA-ADVEIHIOHOAS LNIILYALNO - GNS
VILN3AISTY NON - 1INAY - AdVHIHLOHIASd INJILVdLNO - ans
(S0) AONIDHAWI-1INAY-SANNS X314 - ANS
17NQY - YILNIAISTY ¥3aHO0sId TvNa - dns
TVILNIAISTY NON - 1INAV - LH0ddNS A¥IAQ03H - ANS
TVILNIAISTY NON - L1NAY - INSWIOVYNYN NOILYOIGIN - HIN
1INAY - 140ddNS ALINNAINOD - HIN
TVILNIQISTY NON - 1INAY - NOILYLIIEVHIY AVA - HA
1INAV - INTNLYFHL ALINNWNOD IALLYASSY - HN
SANNA X314 AONIOHIWT - HN
3LVH-HLNOA-AdVHIHLOHOAS LNIILVALNO - HA
31VH- LINAV-AdVH3HLOHOAS INJILYHINO - HW
IYLLNIQISTH NON - LINAY - INIWSSISSY - HIN
1INav - Vi LNIAISTY ¥3aHOSId T¥NA - HA
NOILYLITIEYHIY VI INIAISTY OIILVIHOAS - HA
17NAV - 1N0ddNS AYIA0OTY - HA
AONADYIN - 1INAY - NI SISIHD YNOH ¥Z - HA
17INav - 1¥0ddns ¥33d - HA

30IA¥3S

[2332%

JLNIOdYILINIO

€2/1€/8 HONOYHL
vZ-€CAd
AYYIWINS NOILVYZITLN 1DVYLINOD




_55_

|
| . |
00°006'VST $ | 00000561 $ |%6'T 00'0SZ‘ES .Xm..n 00'0ST‘€S _oo.oow.ﬁ.ﬂ $ | 0000V VLT m_ | ”4<._.O._.
00°00Z'8L $ | 00°000'6 S [%LT 00°005'T$ [%LT | 00°005'TS | 0000728 S | 00°00C'L8 S| S44N | dw3ddnsy _ S3Y NON -L1NAav-LNIWAOIdWT A31H0ddNS - ans
00°00L'9L $ | 00°00S°0T S |%0T 00'0SL'TS |%0°2 00'0S'T$ 00°00Z°£L8 S| 00°00Z°L8 S _ S44N | dw3 ddnsg | S34 NON -._.n_DD<-HZm__>_>O._n_S_.m_ a3aLdoddns - HA
pug Jeax puzJeax | % pied 7 % paisanbay penuoy | adAL | #199ys | ERILYEL
Suluewsy Juing | joeuod 50 ERITNETS [
pajaaloid payelold I %4°9T juaun) |
_ _ | vyT-€TAd
_ | | 11IMA009
1 T m
|| — _ |
| |
€¢/1€/8 HONOYHL
PZ-€CAd

AYVINIANNS NOILYZINILN LOVHLINOD




_56_

|
S _ 00'ZoT'9sT % 7 00°Z01'95¢

ze0se'sze S| soTsLie S |%8T | 8TST9Y ¢ _“....w.ﬂ | 87'529'% _ m._ _ d_._<.ro_.
| , [, _ |
zeose'sze S| 89TSLLt $ |%8T | 8T'STIYS %81 | 8UST9Y $|00coT'9sz  § | 0020T'9SZ §| Sd | zvSEw i TVILNIQISTA - LINAY - ISNOH AYMATYH - aNS
pug Jesx pu3 Jeaj % pied F % paisanbay | wenuod | adAL d #398ys | ERILYEN
ujuieway Suig _ | penuo) Juo _ 201AI3S | _
paafoid pawaloig | %Lt  weumy | _. _ _
| i | _ _ * _ VTETM
| _ | L | 3dOH 40 SISNOH
. [ . _ _ =
| | | | | —
_ m _ 7 _ A ,_ . -
€2/T€/8 NYHL
vC-€CAd

AYVYIWININS NOILVYZITILN LOVYINOD




_57_

(17 £50%1T)

8E'T9EE
00°ZEL'TT
00701
09'%ST'S
00°£€9°TT
(80°966'6)
TETET'ST
90'0550¢C
(9£'£60'68)
(v2'699'€67)
7€'6€0°00T
pu3 Jeaj
Suiueway
payaaloag

$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
5
5
$
$
$

I8ErPIOT $

T9'LEY'S
orv0z's

89°SLLSL
S6'T06'8
9/'DVE'TOE
YT TT6'S6Y
89'GTL8T
puz ieap
duma
pajaaloid

$
$
$
$
$
$
BO'OST'EOT S |
$
$
$
$
$

WV WV U VW

%TTC | LTELOGIT $
%00 - $
%E0T | L2'906%
%00 | 00'0$ .
%00 | - $
%8 | Or'L98S
%00 | 0003
%S'8T | 89 T6TLT
%Sl | 8T679'TT
T%0's | 99°€8Y'T
%LE€T | 9Y'ETT0S
%6'0v | ¥7'759'T8
%9T | 8TEIT'ES
% pied

%1'TC

%00
%E'0T
%00
%00
%8
%0°0
%581
%STT
%0'S
%L'ET
%60V
%9°C
%

%L'9T

|

80'€L069T

£T7°906%
00°0%
Ov'£98%
00°0%
89'T6T'LT
8267971
99°€8Y'TS

| 9V'EZL'0S

¥0'259'Z8
8T6TIT'E
pajsanbay

$ i 00°T8€°008  $

s

$
$

&

$

m 1

m 1

| 006628
00ZEL'TT

! 00v0T

_ 0065601
| coegoer
' 00vsTE6
_ 00°£0600T
00'7St'6T
| oo'eve'ete
00'EFZZ0C
00°552°8TT

0euo)
waun)

. T
| “_

| oo'tge‘o08 S i

s| -

¢ | oo'esL's
| 00°TEL'TT
00°%0T
00'65€°0T

$

$

m._

$ | ooeea’er
$ | 00PST'EE
s | 0o'zoe'00T
¢ | oo'zsee
$ | ooEve'TIe
$ | oo'eve'zoT
$ | 00'ssL'8TT
1de13U0)
‘3uo

B T T T R Y R AR RV s

S44
S44
S4d
S44N
S44
S4d
S44N
S44
S44
S44
S44N
Sd4
adAL

321AIDS

|
[
7E5-0CH _
6EE-0TH _

[

8EE-02H |

LE€-07#

SEE-Ozd

€E€-0TH

VIEE-0TH
TEE-OTH

#199ys

Y101

HLNOA - AdVH3IHLOHOAS IN3ILYdING - aNs

- 1INAY - INFWSSISSY - HIN

- HLNOA - INIWSSISSY - HI

SANN4 X374 ADNIOHINT - HN

17INaV - INFWADVYNYIN AIN - HA

HLNOA - LNIWIDVYNYIN OIN - HA

dX3 HLNOA - INJWSSISSY - HA

11NQY - AdvVYIHIOHOAS INIILVALNO - HA

HLNOA - NOILY1TNSNOD O1LNAdVHIHL - H

(OIA) 3LV - HLNOA - INIWSS3SSY - HA

dX3 HLNOA - AdVHIHLOHOAS IN3ILYALNO - H

HLNOA - AdVHIHLOHADSd LNIILYdLNO - HA
30IAN3S

¥Z-€TAd
INO0dS3dOH

AYVINIAINS NOILLVZITILN LDVYLNOD

€2/TE/8 HONOYHL
vZ-€C2Ad




_58_

97'€T6'E6 S 7 vrsvl'sy S |%S'S 6TYTYLS  |%OY'S 7 BL¥Z'L S _ 00'699'6ET § | 00'699°6ET § “ [vLioL
| ﬂ { !
000000T  § _ ". | 0000001 $ | 0000001 § | s ~17NAY LN3ILYDLNO -HW
0000001 S 7 | 00000°0T ¢ | 00'000°0T S S44 1H0ddNS ALINNWNOD - HN
00'0000T  $ , | 00000°0T  § | 00°0000T  §|  Sd4 _. NOILYLINEYHIH AV - HN
000000 $ | [ _ 00°000'0T $ | 00000°0T S| gYHIY ST HOASd - HW
8T LY S| zgses'tr  $|%E9T | L6659V |[%ETIT | LE'SSI'PS | ooess'se  § | ooegsB S| SH Sx_ pJeog @ wWooy TYILNIAISTY IHNO3S - HA
B09LC'ES  $ | Z6'60BZT S |%TW | TE896TS  |%8TV | 2€'896TS | 00980°TL  $ | 00980 & | SH =m_ IVILNIAISIY I4N03S - HIN
pu3 Jeap pu3 Jesp % pied % paysanbay | 3%enuo) adAlL | #199ys JIIANIS
Suieway Suyig | 7 vequoy | ‘810 | adiuag ..
papafoid paysloid %/'9T | _ uaun) | |
_ . _ vz-EzMd i
m “ | STDINYTS HLTVIH TVHOIAVHIG A3LVHOF1NI
| | ] |
__ _ _ _ i _ 3
£2/T€/8 NYHL
ve-€ECAd

AYYIWINNS NOILVZITILN LOVYLINOD




_59_

AYdVINIAINS NOILVZITILN LDVYLNOD

_ 1
_ “ _ *
09'0E8'06Z S | TWSTTTLS  § |%9OT | 1£740785  |%90T _ £6'L€0'L8 §| 00950618 § | 00'950%618 | Y101 -
00°000°0T S - S |%0'0 - S |%00 00'0$ 00°0000T $ | ooooo’ot S _ s44 JoAdOdns TYILNIAIS3Y NON - HLNOA - AdvHIHLOHOAS INJILVdLINO - ANg
PO'86T'ET $ | 968502 $ |09 |efmozT  § %8S 9ITELTTS o0lge’or & | 00L€T0T  § | S44 | £95-09% TVILNIAISTY NON - LINAY - SININSSISSY - ans
(prestal) 6| vizsT'or  §|%oer | 69'8SE'S %9°EY 69'85€'7S 0000001 $ | 00'0000T m_ s34 Hu3aadans TYILNIQISTH NON - 11NaV - 1S1¥I03dS d¥33d-ans
YE060Y  $ | LOGO'ST  $ |%vyT | BUBIEW  $|%pvT | STBIEW $| 0000008 $|000000E  §| S | T95-09# TVILNIAISTH NON - 11NAY - IN3ILVdLNO AISNILNI - dNS
88'SBY'EL § | Zr9zs'tl S |%S'S T0'TZ6'T S |%s's 20'T26T $ | DO'ZTO'SE $ | 00°TTO'SE $| s 025-094 IVILN3AIS3d NON - 1NavV - AdVETIHLOHOASd IN3ILYdLNO - ans
08°'LE9'ST s | ozoov $ %o 0299 $ |%vo 0£'99 $|ooseo'or 4| o0BE0'9T  § | Sdsn | TBE-09H LINAY-SANND X314 - HA
vEBzz'09  § | 9197909 ¢ [%v'® | 9EWOTOT  § [%v'B 9€'v0T'0T $ | oosssorr | oo'sssozT  §| sdd | LLE-O9H TVILN3QISTH NON - 1INAY - L80ddNS ALINNWNOD - HA
VE'SPET $ | 9obTe’re S |%LET TUSIZTT  § |%LET TUETZTTS 00'099'T8 m_.oo.omm.ﬂu § | s4N |voee-o9 | 35-S3d NON-1INAV - 35 LNFWIDYNYIN 03N - HA
0L'E6Z'8E g m.nw 90L'TIT  $ |%YEl 0841987 § |%t'TT 08'L19'ST s | ooooo'ost  $ | ooooo'osT  $| Sdd4 | sze-09H | TYIINIAISTA NON - 1INAY - INFWIDYNYN Q3N - HA
08'695'9 $ | ozoer'e $ %S | 0£°TL85 %L'S 041283 | ooooo'or  §|o00000'0T | §44 LNOAJOH TVILNIAISTH NON - HLNOA - AdVd3H LOHOAS INJILYALNO - HA
wyez'is  $| srsLLsr  § %D | seo6zte § [%tT1 BE'Y6Z'TES ”oo_mB\mZ $ | ooeco’scz 5| sid _ 6TE-09K S3M NON - 11NAY - AdVHIHLOHOAS INIILYJLNO - HW
T6'555'9€ $ | 80'sz9’E S |%ST 8T'P09S %S'T 817095 | 001810V s | oo'18T'OF $| s34 UssassyHW| TYILNIAISTY NON - .S_._ai UBWISSESSY - HIN
9CEBL'E 7T A P 67°98L'78 %e'eT | 62'98L'2 $ _ ooooo’'oz  $ |ooooo'oz  $| sd ;Em :s: WILNIAIS3Y NON - 1INV - LS17VI0AdS ¥33d - HW
pug JEsA | pug 1eap % pied % peisanbay 1Penuo) adAl | #3199ys JIIANTS
Sujuieway Bun)g | 17e1U0) ‘3up DIAIBS
pavaloid pawalold | “oserot 7 waumn) |
_, V€A
. m _ _" _ SIDINGES ATIANVL NYHIHLNT
h _ # -
! “ _
€2/TE/8 HONOYUHL
vC-€CAd




_60_

|
m_oa,ooo,om $ | 0000005 $|

AYVINIAINS NOLLYZITILN LDVYLINOD

(v00) ¢ | v00000S  § |%L9T | VE'EEE'®  § |%LI'GT VEEEE'S ﬂ._<l_.0h
{vo0) $ | b0000'0S  § [%L9T | vEEEE'B  § |%L9OT | VE'EEE'SS | 0000005 $ _ 0000005 $| SN | €8S-S/H | 1INAY - NOILYOI4ILNIQI '80dd - NOILNIATYd - dNS
pug Jeaj pu3 Jeaj % ped | % | pasanbay _ wenuoy | adAl | #393ys | JOIAN3S
“Suiuleway Junng | | weaued | 80 Tu_?_om ! |
paalold pawsaloid %91 | | suny _ | _ —
| _ . _ €2-2TM . ]
_ 7 . i | dIHSY3NLHVd NOILYONA3 1vIId3aN NTOONIT
_ .
| | __ | |
_ | _ | _ _ _
€2/1€/8 HONOYHL
ve-€CAd




_61_

- L - ) I ] I WLOL

$ $ |
| | |
s| - $ : 5 : s| - s - s 7 S| voeeTH | 17Nav - AQOLSNO 3AILOALOYd AONIOHINI - HAN
$ - $ | $ 7 | S | S S | sS4 T9E-ETH | 17NAaV - SAVA INFWLINWOD LSOd LNIILVdNI - HA
S ) - S _ $ S S | S| 09€-ET# 17NAV - NOILYZITVLIdSOH INAILVdNI JLNIV-aNS - HAN
$ | S 00°0% , 00'0% | $1 $ Sdd4 _ 85E-€TH 17NAavy - NOILYZIMVYLIdSOH INJILVANI 3LNOV - HA
pug Jeap puilean | % pied % pasanbay | (yN) PE1IUC) adAL | #199YyS IOIANAS
Suiureway Suing | | | 1enuo) ‘Jup | svmas 7 |
payaaford peafoid | | %9t | _ papuswy [
7 m 7 _ . _ m vZ-€TAd
_ 7 _ | m | IV LIASOH ONINNVYT AdVIN
| — — 7 | —

€2¢/1€/38 HONOYHL
vC-€CAd
AYVININNS NOILYZITILN LDVYLNOD




_62_

_— | | E—f—
ovE0sTos  § | 096BTOS  § %€ | OTevo'ts  $ |%E® | OUGY'ER $ | oo'eov'e00’t S | 00'E0Y'E00T § | _ | VLOL :
00'00V'ET $ "_ - S |%00 00'0S ..nxuo.o H 00°0% | 00°00%‘€C S _ 00'00¥EZ S _ S44N S3Y NON -L1NAvV-LNIWAOTdING Dm.._-W_On_&Dw -ans
00'604°£CT S w - S %00 00°0S ".X.O.o _ 00°0% _ 00'60L°LTT S _ oo.mon\.hw.ﬂ S | S44N “ IV3IH HOLVDIAVYN >|___>_<n_ -ans
YEEBE'YT S 4 90'S7LZTT S ..Xh&._“ 19'£8L'8T$ .,NXR.QH _ TG'L8L'8TS _ 00'60L°LTT 5 “ 0060 'LET S| Sd4N _ V3IY N_OP<O_><Z >|___>_<n_ - HA
00'v0T S - S |%00 | . S |%00 |- S | 00v0T S | 00'%0T S _ SJ4N | 90€-G9# | SANNS X313 AONIOHINT - HN
v_m.mmn_.,NHN S d 9y TLE'E9E S (%01 ! T6'T9509 $ |%v'0T | 16'195°09 S _ 00'ZE¥'08S S _ 00°'LEV'08S S | S44N | TOE-99# ._wmm NON-1T1NAV-SHH 2 Y3IA0 NOISHIAIA IVLIdSOH - HN
6SHsIT $ _ 80'86L'ST  § |%0E | 8966LY  $ %0°E 7 89°662'7 $ | 00vROVYT | 00WROWYT S| SHN | 00ESOH | ST NON -L1NAV-LNINAOTdINT FLHOLNS - HA
pugj Jeap pug Jeaj % pied | % pajsanbay | 1IB43U0D _ adAy | #3199ys | JOIAN3S
Suiujeway Suing | _ | _ yeIU0) _ Sup | sa1nsag
payaloid paaloid [ . %/'9T _ _ uaun) | [ i _
_ ” _ . _ _ _ " YZ-E2Ad
_ “ _ _ | _ _ NOILYIDOSSY HLTV3IH TVAININ
| | | | - —
_ " _ _ _ _

€2/1€/8 HONOYHL
YC-€CAd
AYVININNS NOILYZITILN LDVHLINOD




_63_

(8L'612°092)

09'86%'8T
09'86%'8T

v8evL e
(vL vTE)
‘pu3 Jeap
Fuiueway
‘papaloid

(80'zsT'0TE)

$ | vT'08904LT

VR AN U N WA W

Ov'LE9'EY

v LEI'ED

80'099°886

91'05Z'L

YL TVEY

9E'BST'YE

00°€66'865
puj Jeaj

Suyng

paialosd

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

%0 TE

%OLTT
%0LTT
%S9'VT
%EO'Y

%LE6LT

%8 TV
%

8GZ9S‘TYY S

06'7LTLS
06'7LT'L$
89'9L£'%9T$
9£°802'TS
61°€TL
95°920T
618 LY
pied

W U U N

%¥0'1E

%0L'TT
%0L'TT
%S9

%0y
PATA

%8T 1Y

85795 Thy

06'2LT'LS
06'2LT'LS
89'9LL'¥9TS
9£'80T'TS
6L ETL
95°970'v1S
6E'T8TLYT
paisanbay

m
_
[
$ | 00'108'STY'T $

4_ 0096129 $

| o0'9gt?s ¢
.oo.mom‘wmm $
| oooo0'0E  $
¢ 100d
$ | oorgzo'y S
_ 100d
$ | 00'E66'86S S
|
_ 19e11U0)
m usun)

__

|
1

00°'TOR'STY'T § |

00°9€1'29
00'9£1°29
00'805'899
00'000°0€

W U U

00'8Z0'Y S
100d
00'€66'865 S
Jesnuo)
8u0

S44N _

S3aN | 350d3
S4AN |

S44 5 LNWSSY
S41 | T6S-€TH
| S4dN | €9e-€T# |
Sdd _Sm-m;__
S4iN | E€se-eTH
adA]l | #193us
__ ESITIEN

1

i lviol

ADNI9¥INT - 1INAY - 35 NOILYZIIEYLS SISI¥D - ans
AON3DYINT - L1INAY - 35 NOILYZITIEYLS SISIHD - HA
AJNIDHINI 11NAY - NOILYZNIEYLS SISIHD - ans
11Nav INJWSSISSY ans
IN3ILVANI - 1100V - SAVQ LNJWLININGD 150d INIILVdNT - ans
B - SANNA X314 ADNIOHANG - H
IN3ILVANI - 11NQY - SAVA INIWLINWO 1SOd LNIILVANI - HW
ANIDYINI L1NAY - NOILYZIIEVLS SISIHD - HA

ADIANNIS

Ye-€CAd

YILNIO SISIYD HLTVIH TVLNIW

€2/1€/8 HONOUHL
vZ-€CAd
AYVINIANINS NOILLYZIILN LDYYLINOD




_64_

AIYIWIANS NOLLVZITILN LOVYLINOD

! | |
— | | |
! | | _ |
07818509  $ | 08'0LS'E0T  $ |%P'T 08'192'LT  § |%¥'C 08'T97LTS [ 00'6¥¥'L0L  § | 00'6VYLOL S m |TvLOL
oovet'eLr $| - $ (%00 %00 [oovorece §|oovarecz $| s# | _ VYSM-8SNoH AemjleH - ans
00TPITE S| - $ |%00 00°0% %00 | - $|oozyr'ze ¢ |00TyrZE  §| S44 | L65OTH# 3S-S34-1INAY-WNOD O1LNIdVHEIHL - NS
08'9¥5'95T  § i 0TESLOr  $ |%YE | 0T'E6LD S |uve | 0z'€E6L'9 $ | 00'90€'26T $ | 00'90E'L6T & | S | 88S0T# HYINOTH B YSM - L1NAY - TVILNIAISTH WHTL LTJOHS - ans
00999°THT | - $ (%00 - $ |%00 : $)00999'TYT  $ | 00'999'T¥T S| Sd4 | LBSOTH VSM-SIY-LTNAV-ALINNWINOD O1LNIdVHIHL - aNs
g A $ |%00 - ¢ %00 - s| - $ | S3N | e8sOTH (S2) ADNIOYINI-LTINAY-SANNL X314 - ANs
(89°€5S'T) S | 89'€0EL $|%TTe | 8TLITT $ |l%zTe | BTLITT $ | 00°05L'S $|o00sL's  §| S| T85O JLVH-1TNAV-AdYHIHLOHOAS IN3ILVdLNO - dNS
- $ . S |%00 - $ |%0'0 = S - $ = $| S44 | 085-0T# ST NON - 1TNAV - 1H0ddNS ALINNNINGD - aNs
86'€81'C $ | 70'8L6'T S |%6°L L9°6T€ S |%6'L L9'6CE $ | 0091y S | DOTIT'Y $ | SIN | v6E-OTH | SANN4 X374 AONIOHINT - HA
0T'62L $ | 06'675°€S S [%P9T | S9TT6'S S |%b'9T 59'126'8 §006ST¥S | 00BSTWS  $| SN | EBEOTH | 190ddNS AY3IA0D3Y - ANS:
pu3 Jea pug Jeap % | pied | % paisanbay 1enuoD adAL | #3i99ys | JJIAY3S
Sujuieway Sunig { Penuo) ‘3uo .. ERITVETS
pawaloid padsfoid | %ot | wauny |
_ | _ [ _ . YZ-€TAd
_ i m S\VOINOW "1S
1 1
| 7 1 [ _
€2/1€/8 HONOYHL
PC-€CAd




_65_

(85'v8Y'€T)

8v'8TT'EY

(0T LTP'TET)
¥8'1v0°L
051258
{92°528'551)

75'6TE'T9
¥6'0v9vrT
pug JeaA
Buiuieway
paaloid

$

$
$
$
S

$

W i

85°969CTLT §

$ | ¢S'6ET°90T

oT'vLS'SLy  $
9T'09L€T $
0S'ZIv'E S

$

| 9£°S9T'S9E

8Y'9LS'€TT S
90'890°5€S S
pu3 Jeajp
Sunpa
pajpeloid

%L0°ST

%pTT
1
%0T €2
%Z0'T1
%LLY
|%0'62
%56°CT
%ZLEL
%

€6V 38T

76'689'LT

SE'79'6L
9£'€62'T
S£895$
96'098'09

80'965'SE

10°8L1'68%

pled

$ |%L0'ST
|

$ lwreTl

$
$

%OT'€2
%Z0'TT
%LLY

$ %062

S |%S6CT
%CTEL

%

| evevv'ssr

SET9T'6L
95°€67'C

| 508953

| 96°098'09

w 76'689°LT

| 80965'58
| T0'8£1'68
_ paisanbay

00'6L9PTT
00'8v6'68
$ | 00'89€'6YT
S | 00°LST'EVE
$ | 00'808°0¢
00'vE6'TT
$ | coove'soz

S 7 00'968'7L¢
S | 00'60L'6L9
Penuo)

_ 3N

¢ | 00°6L9'VTT
$ | 00'8v6'68
$ | 00'89€'6YT
S|
$ | ooestee
$ | 0080807
| 00PEETT
4 | oo'ove'60T
S
¢ | 00'968'vLZ
$ | 00602629
1e1U0)
_ 3uo
|

¢ | 00'6E9°E68°T $ | 00'6ER'E6RT § |

m 1

S44N

S44N
S44N
S44N
S44N

S44N
S44N
adAy

ESTIYED

_
|

[TvioL
| 5334 NON - L7Nav - SIDIAYIS WNOD JAISNILNI - ans
_ LINaV - 3SNOdSTY SISIED - Ans

vivSer | S34 NON - LINQV - 1H0ddNS A¥IN0DI - NS
| S3d NON - LINAV -TviNY 180ddNS A¥3A003Y - ANS
|esesed | S3d NON - LINAY - SIOIAYIS WWOO FAISNILNI - HI
ogE-Se# | SANN4 X314 AONIOHINI - HW
yanoA-y | LINOA-HO
gresew | 17NAY - ISNOJSTY SISIHO - HIN
_ S34 NON - 1INAY - TvHNY 140ddNS AMIA0OTH - HIN
vieseh | ST NON - LINAV - LHOddNS AYIA0ITY - HN
€1ese | 1INAVY - L4OddNS ALINNINNOO AONIONINS - HIV
#399us | EBITNER
_
. vZ-€TAd

(3dOH 40 S3ISNOH) OSVL

€2/1€/8 ySnoayL
ve-€CAd
AYVINIAINS NOILVYZITILN LOVHLNOD




_66_

_. _ _ _ “, ,_ _ 7 | _

0€'6LE°L $ | osze0z0r $ “xﬁ.oﬁ S6'789'€E S :x,ﬁ.mﬁ 7 S6'Z89'CE S _ 00 LLY'BOT $ 00'£LY'60T $ | ._4<FO._.
| _

(YR573) $|0LL60T0C S |o62'9T | s6°7BY'EE $ |%LOT _. 56'Z89EE $ | 00'PSTT0Z § i 00ST'T0Z $ | Sdd | 9st-aE# _ IYILNIAISIY - 11NAV - TVILNIAISTH WHT 1L 1HOHS - dns
00°€TE'8 S| - S %00 i S ,xo.o _ - S _ DO'EZEB S . 00'EZER  § _ Si4 | [9e-SeH _j 17Nay - SANN4 X374 AONIDHINT - HN

pug Jeaj _ pu3 Jesp % pied % | paisanbay 7 Penuoy | adA] | #199usS 7 JIIAN3S

Sujuieway Sunng | 1IeIIU0D ‘8o | 921A18G

payaloid | pepsloid %L'9T | _ 3D _m _ _

_ . 7 _ . vZ-ETAd

| | | | (3dOH 40 S3SNOH) INOLSHONOL

. _ } |
L | | i |
| | | | |

|
|
|
|

€Z/1€/8 HONOYHL
ve¢-€CAd

AYVININNS NOILVYZITILN LDVHLINOD




_67_

—

7 £8'898'T s |

|

70'918'8T me.uz.: $ %62 £8'898'C7  $ |%6L 00'€ET'9E $ | OD'EET9E § | _ [1vioL
1 1 1 | |
} 1 | 7 | [ =
- S | S ”nx.o.o - S mcx.o.o | - $ | 00'v0T S | 00'F0T S| S4IN | PTE-CTH 7 17NAav - SANN4 X374 AON3OH3INT - HA
(86'726'S) $ | 86°TIT'LT § |%9°TT 38987 S |%9T¢ | £8'898° $ | 00'06TET § | 0006TET $ | s | zreze | (AINO 9% o) TVILNIAISTY IHNDIS - HW
006ELTT § $ %00 - slwoo | - §| ootz $ | oo6ELTz §| si | oteTtd | ~ IVILN3QIS3Y 3dND3S - HW
puzlesp | puilesn | % pied % 7 pelsanbay venuody | adAL | gi99ys | JOIAN3S |
uyureway suing _ | 1eIU0) _ ‘S0 | amniag 7 | o
papaloid papalosd | %L'9T | aun) _ 7
i “ _ _ bz-€TAd
| | “ ERVERET
| | | | )
{ [ _ 7 7
| | |
€2/TE/8 HONOUHL
€C-CCAd

AYYININNS NOILVZITILN LOVHLNOD




_68_

AYYNIAINS NOILVYZITILN LDVYLINOD

|
* “ | | . |
SYEEOTEQT  § | CSECLOEC'E § |%1'B  ZGESV'ES  $ |%0El _Nm.m,._ﬂmmm $ | 00'6€8'9€99 ﬂ_oo.ms.owwe $ ._4<hoh . )
| |
00°69E'8 S| - $woo - $ %00 - $|0069€'8  $ | 00'69€' m_ SNOILYINdOd TVI03dS - HN
00'88€'7T S| - $ |%0°0 - $ %00 = ¢ |oossecc  $ | 00'88E"EE $ NOILLITYOD SY10 - HA
owoovoty  $| - $ %00 < $ %00 = $|o0ov0'ty  $ | 000VO'TY $ JuYO A3NYOANI YANYYL - ANS/HW
08 EV8'9C $ | 022662 $l%LT  oLgey $ %LT  0L86Y $|ooges’sz  § | 00'9g8'6T $ AYIA0DTY / IDIOA HINWNSNOD - ANSHA
¥'768'81 ¢ |ogze0'68 S |%LEL 9L'8€8%T $ %LET  9L'8EBYT ¢$ | 00626201 § | 00°626°S8 $ (OM) SHIHONOA DNISNOH d3.1d0ddNs - dns
97'9B0'TET | VL9BT'08 S |%TS ¢ 6L7TEOOT $ %TS  6LTEOOT ¢$|ooesziel  $ | 00'€8ToLL S ONISNOH A3140ddNS - dns
0000002 S $ |%0°0 - $ %00 - $ | 000000z $ | 00700002 $ ONINIVHL NOILNIATIHd - dNS
pz's09'2zT  $ | 9L0LT'W0T  § (%EOL ' 97'8TOVE $ %E0L  9V'8TOVE $|oooszz'tee s oooLL'iee $ SNOILIMYOD NOILNIASHd - ANns
(06'€29'67)  $ | 069S'EE S |%E9S  STY6S'S $ %E9S  ST'WES'S $|ootre’s | 001¥6'S $  (siepinoid jie) SANNL X314 - ANS
00'v€6'TT $| - $ (%00 : $ %00 - m._oo.qmm.: $ | 00WEE'TT $ (siapircid 11B) INIWLINNOD 1S0d - ans
09'veT'LS $ | Ov'008 $ (%20 Ov'€ET $ %0 oreer  §| 00'520'85  $ | 00'SZO'8S $ ONINIVHL ONIMIIAGILNI TYNOILYAILOW - ANS
0T'602'60¢ | 08097 $l%00 089z $ %00 0897 $ | 000LE'607 S| 000LE'SOZ  $ | ONINIVHL AdVHIHL TYHOIAVYHIE TvOILO3TVIA - ANS
9gvL9TLT  $ | pTTOV'T $|%zo  6T00F $ %0 6100V $ _ 00'9LO'VLT S| 009L0'WLT S ONINIVHL ONIMIIAYTLNI TYNOILVALLOW - HW
0z602'60c  § | 08091 $[#00  os9e $ %00 089 $ | 000660z $ |000LE'60z  $ | ONINIVHL AdVHIHL TYHOIAYHIE TVOILOITVIA - HIN
: s e $ %00 . $ %00 : s - s| - $ | (ssepinoid lle) LNFILYANI 3LNOVENS - HA

00"Z¥8'EST S| - ¢ |%00 - S %00 5 $| 00Ly8'EST  $ | 00'LPR'EST $ (s1epInold |IB) INILVANE ILNDV - HN
00°SE8'62 $| - $ [%00 : $ %00 = $ 1005867 | 00'SE8'6Z $ _ 3INO HOd SNY1d - HA
00000098  §| - $ |%00 < $ %00 - $ | 00000'09€  $ | 00000098 $ | SHHA INO Y04 SNV 1d - HA
00°59v'E? I $ %00 - $ %00 - $ | oosov'sz  $ | oosov'ee $ | NOILVEOILNI HE - HN

_ . %07l ZoEer'ee ¢ 007T206LZ S | _co_Eo>9n_ - uB | pous

_ %S6T  9SBIVEL S| 00ZZYLLE S| lyinoA @by uomsuel)

[ %GBT TrvoTLTZ ¢ | 00'6E8OTTT S | [leuonipes
(00vLz'LT) ¢ | 009SLWYET § |%EBT  00'9TIVIE  § %EBT - 009ZTPZE S| 00T8YLOLT §|00TBYLILT  § SINVIOOHd HIN LYY TYNOISSIH0Nd - HIN
ooses’ee  § |(oo00z'w) $ |%0z-  (0000£) $ %0z (0000L) $ | oos9r'se  § _ 00°§9T'SE $ NOILYDILIA MSIY G401ANYT - HA
09'080'T€ $|ovwsezeg  $ |%ETT  OVITLYT $ %ETT  O9TLYT $ | 006LEBTT  § | 00°L66'EL $ (V1) ONISNOH A3140ddNS - HW
80'5969 ¢ |z6T6E'80L  § |%S9T  TESO0'BTT  $ %SOT  CES90BIT  $ | 00LSESIL § _ 00'LSESTL  § | (dvd) ONISNOH a3.L¥0ddNS - HA
9" SESOTT $ | ¥5LE8TT $ |%Le 65°6€9°E $ %LT  BSBEYE s | ooeL9'zer  $ | 00°€L9TET $ (s1opwnoid [18) SANNA X314 - HA
¥9°199°7¢ S | 9°651v8 $ |%TEL 959201 $ %T'ET  959207T S _ 00'Tz8'90T  $ | 00'TZ8'90T S (siapinoid [18) INFWLINNOD 1SOd - HIN
"~ puzsear pu3 aes; e | pied % | palng _ _ Benue) | J9IAN3S

Suiuewuay duypg | | 7 i 1Jesjuo0) 7 ‘310
pajalosd paizalosd | %/°9T uan)y

., _ _ _ _ vZ-€2Ad

_ | ] | | SI0INYIS IAIMNOIDTY

| | | | |

€2/1€/8 HONOYHL
Ve-€CAd




59—

Suilasuno)
|euolssaJ04d “JOM

20589 3N ‘vjooun

1e190S ‘14N ‘dHINT 193435 Ynos pEYT s33ug IN"d 00°TT - "INV 0€:8
519pin0id JI0MIaN 3.4 0'€ SHgI| S!l|CH 73 103S dlwef /Ind 3jnpy 0Z-v1d ¥207 ‘T Atenigay
sauof sufauag A31undas (pios Jo
-XLIpUSH BUI[PPEIN| M3IAIaAQ UY :NOA J0f JIOM ‘w-d WoET - 00:¢T
ANUNWIWO) pUD SI3PINOId 3IOMIIN 3314 V/N jonial  pue Jawwa essiPN Sanpuaduy yiom bunioiy 20T ‘¢ Menuer
1a504| ‘wrdog:T - “wrdeo:zT
Ayunwwo) 9344 V/N |lenuIp wea) uonuarald| ‘epensiad ‘uo1isanD -4d0D 207 ‘2T Atenuef
‘wrd 00:§ - "wre OE:8
siapinold 11 @seyd Jauied] ayy uled| vz0T ‘21
HIOMIDN JO JJe1s paseg-aouaping payAu| ?3u4 Vv/N swaisAs A uoiday suuuar epuaag| Suimainsaul jeuonieaio| YdseN pue ZT - 1T Asenuey
Suyasuno)
|euOISS3)0Id Y4OM 20589 3N ‘ujodurt
(e120S ‘LA ‘dHINT 193435 1In0S OEYT s83ug "Wd 00:ZT - W'V OF:8|
513pinoid JI0MIaN 334 0'¢ SHgI| ®!IOH @ HOIS Sluier {ind 3npy 0Z-v'10 20T ‘s Asenuer
Suijasuno)
|euolssajoid IO
[e120S “I4INT ‘dHINT a3 PV ‘wrdpg:s - 'w'np0’g
Apunwio) 2314 09 swajsAs A uoibay| 13t pup oyazny jiif| IS4 Y3DSH [DIUBIN YINOA £20Z ‘S 13quarag
siaquiaw
Alunwuiod 104 0TS
8ujesuno)
SIOQUIDIA Weal asuodsay |euoissajoad oM OTH#89 IN ‘AND eyseiqan
S|euoissajoad Y1jesHy |elolreyag pue SISl pue ‘yazedsiqg 1e10s ‘14N ‘dHINT peoy uealAS 00LZ JUDWISSDSSY JedYL YIjeaH ‘wrdgg:p - ‘wreg0:g
‘asuodsay SISl ‘Yaledsig UBWSI0 T MET| ‘JUBWII0IUT MET 10 D314 9 a8po7 Yeyuals siayeads snouep |esoineyaq -y134 U] €20 ‘9T JaqWIaAON
2Qv1 pue Bujjasuno)
[euoIssajoLd SHOM 80589 3N ‘ujoaun
1e190S ‘14N ‘dHIN JALIQ uonewIo)suRl] TZOT siuef euld| | aseyd :s_: ‘wed gy - "wre 00:8

SJ9PIADLJ YIOMISN JO JBIS Paseg-a0udpIAg EEIN| T sndwe) uonesouul| pue sSuluuar epualg| Suimalalalul |BUOREAIIOIN €202 ‘L1-9T J3qIBAON
BuiPsuno)
|euoissajoid
“JIOM |BID0S agal
51apinoid 3I0MIaN 2314 ‘14W1 ‘dHIN1 0'T JDNUIA - 3]Uj0d133U3) Qadl 134s31fay 0Z-v1a €207 ‘9 J9qWRAON
Suypsuno)
|euoissajold oM 20589 3N ‘ujoour
[8190S ‘LIWT ‘dHIN 192.35 YInoS OEYT s3gug W'd 00°ZT - W'V OE'8
519pIn0.d J10MIaN 334 0'€ SHEI] °!|OH 73 OIS alwef 1Ind 3npy 0Z-¥v1a €207 ‘€ JaqWanoN
1249y ‘wrdog:T - "wdoo:zT
>u_.:=E|cIEu ECIE| v/N |enuIA douyieq ejAey ‘apensiad ‘uonsanp -¥do €202 ‘S 19quiaAON
aJsuadlpny 198.e L 150D snN1 uonesloq J9juasald uonduasaq /adoy sawi)/aeq
ﬂﬂ.ﬂodluw._];hﬂﬂmdl_dﬂlww_wdhn 9N "ujoouiq ul —u_m.r_ wn._ 01 mmcmc_m‘u. 1y
sSulujesf Suiwodadn

SwidlsAs A uoiday




Suifesuno)
|euoissaj0id YJOM

20589 3N ‘ujooult

(21908 ‘14T ‘dHN 132115 4INos OsyT s33ug “IN"d 00:2ZT - 'V O€°8
SJapIN0Id JIOMIaN EEVE (153 SHEI|  ®UIOH '3 1OJS dlwer {In4 ynpy 0Z-via 20z ‘L dunf
1349y wdpg:T - 'wdoo:zt
Aunwwo) 9944 Vv/N |enuIA wea| uoiuaAlld ‘apensiad ‘uonsany -4do 20T ‘0T Aein
Sugjasuno)
Jeuolssa404d “JOM
121905 ‘LINT ‘dHINT pIv ‘wdpo:§ - "Wo00’8
Ayunwio) 2314 09 SwaysAs A uoibay qadi] 35214 Y3p3H |DIUSN YINOA vzoz ‘91 pady
SauOf syfauag A3naas [p10S Jo
-XLIpU3H SUlPPEN| M3nIanQ uy :noj Jof oM “wed WEET - 00:2T
ANUNWIWO) pup SIaPINOId YIOMISN 3314 v/N swalsAs A uoibay| pue Jawwa essiP S3ALIUIIUY Y10/ BuniDy 20z ‘ot judy
av1 pue Supsuno)
|euoissajold “HOM
siapinodd 121205 ‘LN ‘dHINT Sujures) uordwey) (IN) ‘wird 00:G - "w'e 0€'8
3JOMIBN 40 Jels paseg-aduaplag pauAu] ECIE| (94 SWwaisAs A uoiSay|] sSuiuuar epuasg| Suimalasalu) jeuoiiealloy 20T ‘s udy!
SuyPsuno)
|eUOoISSaj01d HJOM Z0S89 IN ‘ujodury
[e190S ‘L JINT ‘dHW1 192435 Ynos OEYT s33ug ‘IN'd 00:2T - 'IN'Y om"mﬁ
519pinoid JI0MIaN 9314 0'€ SHEI| 2NI0H 13 OIS dlwer iind 3jnpy 0Z-v10 %202 ‘S 1dy
..82_1 wrdpge:t - "wdpoizt
Anunwwo) Q9944 v/N lenuIA wea| uoluasald ‘apensiad ‘uonisany -¥do 207 ‘8 Yriey
TEUOISS3J01d PHOM 20589 N Ujoouy]
{e190S ‘1IN ‘dHINT 13a.$ Ynos oerT s33ug ‘IN*d 00:2T - "WV 0E:8
S13pinoid 410MIaN 3314 0'€ SHEI| SUIOH g 10S dlwer 1Ind 3npy 0Z-v14d v20Z ‘T YIeW
Buyjasuno)
|euolssajoid HJOM
1e100S ‘14N ‘dHW1 CE] 414 ‘wrdpQ:s - ‘Wwop0:g
Ayunwuio) 2314 0'9 Swa3sAs A uotbay| 143l puo byjazn) Jiif| 15414 Y3]D3H JDIUSA INPY| vzoz ‘0z Aoniqad
slaquiaw
Alunwwod 10} 0SZS
Junasuno)
sIaquiay wea) asuodsay | [euoissaj0id SJOM 80589 IN ‘ujodur] ‘wdog:p - "w-ep0:s
S|euoIssajoid YijeaH |eJoineyag pue SIS puE ‘Yaledsiq 1e190S ‘14N ‘dHW1 9ALIQ uoflewlojsuRl] TZ0T JUDWISSASSY 1B34Y] tzot
‘asuodsay SISHD ‘Yiedsiq ‘WUSWIBII0JUT MeT| JUSWIII0JUT MET JO) D314 (114 sndwe) uoijeaouu| sioveads snoiiep yijeaH jesoiaeyag -v13g| ‘9T Atenigad - £T Asenigay

JaVv1 pue Suljasuno)
|euolssaj04d ‘H10M

80589 3N ‘ujodun

[e120S “14IAT ‘dHIA BALIC] UONBWLIOJSURI] TZOT 11 @seyd (IN) ‘wed og:¢ - "we 008
SI9PIAOIJ JIOMIDN JO LIS PRSEgq-dUPIAT sa14 A sndwe?) uoneAcuy| sSuluuar epusig|  Juimaiaiau jeuoieanon ¥20Z ‘-8 Azenigoy
asualpny 398Je] 350D sn uone’o] 19jUasald uondudsaq / aidoL sowi] /aleq
pa10U SSIMISYI0 SSS[UN BYSEIGON "U[0IUIT UT p[ay 9 OF SBUTUTely |V
sSuiuleq] Suiwoddn

Swa)sAs A uoiday




_71_

paJinbau uonesisidal oN

|9na Jamon
‘wooisse|) uoleanp3
199115 YI9T °S 7Tt

Lnay - sdnoio
Ajunwwo) (dvdm) :m_n_ﬁ

‘wrd O€:9 - 0€:S
Jo “wid g0:S - 00:%

29)4 QUON sndwie) 153 uelg yeis yyeay uehrg|  uondy AJanoday ssaujipm shepsinyy
[oAS7 JamoT]
“Woo4sse|) uonesnpl HLNOA - mn__..o._wﬁ
paJinbai uontessidal oN 192135 Y191 'S 22T Ajgunwwo) (dvym) ueld -wd 0o:Z - 00:9
Ajunwuwio) 234 QuUoN sndwie) 158 uehig yeis yyeay uelig| uondy Aidnoday ssau|i@m shepsany
TOTIeIaoe
Sujuies) Joley|dey B HWIGNS
01 8ZAN4DDIAWNMJ
HY9H/319°SWYOL//:SdLLH oyl ‘wrd Qi - “W'e 00:6
AMunwwo) 03109 SUON vall ‘eanenu| Suiqilem Sujuies] Jorey|dRS dYHM €207 ‘0T-9 Azenaqay
S1aY30 Jo4 pasunouuy sSuures)
o
Ajunwwod 103 0STS
Suilasunod

S|eUOISS3J0.1d Yl|edH (elolAeyag puey

SJaquIBN wed) asuodsay
SISl pue ‘yaredsiqg

|euoissajoid

oM

80589 AN ‘ujoourt

1e00s ‘141 ‘dHW1 3ALIQ UolewIO)SURl) TZOT JUBWISSISSY 1Ly ‘wrdog:y - “Wep0:s
‘asuodsay SisU) ‘Ydjedsiqg ‘AUSWIIIOJUT MET| WUBWBDI0JUT MET 1O} 3314 [ord sndwe?) uoleaouuy siayeads snoLeA yi|eaH |esolneyaq -y139 pyzoz ‘T IsnSny - gZ Ainr
8ujjzsuno)
|euolssajodd NI0M
1e190S ‘LN ‘dHINT Plv “wdpo:s - ‘wepo:8
Ajunwiwo) 2314 09 SWwasAs A uolbay agl 15214 Y3[DIH [DIUSIN NPV b20Z ‘8T auny|
Auunwiwod 10} /4
Bujesunc) 70589 AN ‘ujodun
SIPQUWIRIN wea| asuodsay |eUOISS30.1d “JIOM 183415 |[1H 0TZ
S[euolssaj0.d Yl|eaH |eioireyag pue SIS pue ‘yojedsiq 1e120S ‘14T ‘dHINN 193u9) Juiusea {v139) uswssassy 1ealyl ‘wed pg:p--wi'e 00:8
‘asuodsay SIS ‘Yaredsia ‘uawWIII0jug meT| ‘JUaWDII0JU3 MeT J0) B3y L [euolssajodd uol) uoq siaxeads snoLep y1jeaH |esolaeyag YInop Z0T ‘TT 3unf
2Jualpny 1981e 150) snId uoie’o J2juasald uonduasaq /aido) sawi]/areq
Pajou aSIMISYJO SSajun eySeIqaN "Ujodury ul p[ey 9q o3 Sauluiely ||y

s3ululel] Suiwoddn

swaisAs A uoiday




